APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.

(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1066419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

14. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
2021 2020
RM RM

Amount owing by:«
Trade balance 2461 1,041,449
Non-trade balance 6,595,170 { 6,499,468
Alowance for impairment lossas (6,580,330) (6,498 468)

4,840

7,301 1,841,440
Allowance for Impalrment losses -
Al 1 October 202002018 (6,460,468) (6,541 382)
Addition during the financial year (Note 24) (14,719) (17,350)
Foreign exchange difference (76,143) 58204
Al 30 September (6,580,330) {6,459 483)
Amount owing to:-
Trade balance (173,588) (155,020)

(a) The trade balances are subjec to the normal irade credit terms of 60 (2020 - 60) days. The
amounis owing are o be seltled in cash.

(b) The nontrade balances are unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand. The
amaounls owing are o be seltled in cash

15. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Group
2021 2020
KM KM
Monay market funds, at far value 5,825,776 2625193
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(Incorporatad in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

16.  FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
Fixed deposts with licensad banks:
- pladged 3,888,272 4,797,302
Effective interest rafe per annum (%) 13010 1.85 16510275
Maturity periods (months) 1012 1012
17, SHARE CAPITAL
The GroupiThe Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Of Shares RM RM
Issued and Fully Paid-Up
Ordinary Shares 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

The holders of ordnary shares are entiled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company, and are entided 1o one vole per share at the members’ general meelings of the
Company. The ordinary shares have no par value.

18. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign exchange transtation reserve arose from the ransiation of the financial statements of a
foreign subsidisry whose functional curency = different from the Group’s presentation currency.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1088419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

18.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 1 Cclober 202002018
COVID-18-redated rent
CONCESSIONS

(Noles 25 and 27(a)).

- principal

- Imerast expansa
Changes due to lease
modification (Note 27(3))
Interest expense
recognised in profit or
loss (Nates 25 and
27(a))

Repayment of principal
Repayment of interest
axpense

At 30 September
Analysed by

Current liabilitees
Non-current kabilities

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
269, 906 £oT 162 83412 149,524
(34,412) (10,380) (14,278) (10,280)
(2,648) {1,645) {671) (1,645)
413,148 - -
33,664 45,840 6,631 11,868
(324,840) (296 .876) (67.090) (55,732)
{31,0186) (43,905) (5,860) {10.243)
353,793 209 906 12,043 83412
283,329 284 881 12,043 71,389
70,464 15,025 - 12,043
353,793 299 606 12,043 83,412

Certain lease liabilties of the Group are secured by the Group's molor vehicles under the hire
purchase arrangements as disclosed in Note 7 1o the financial statements, with lease terms of 5
{2020 - 5) years and bear effective interest rates of 5.28% (2020 - £ 92% to 5.26%).

TERM LOANS

Current liabMles
Non<urrent liabites

The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
157,392 112,539
702,811 860,204
860.203 472,743

Page 59

128



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Ircorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

20, TERM LOANS (CONT'D)
(a) The interest rate profile of the term loans are summarised below:-

Effective
Interest Rate The Group
2024 2020 2021 2020

% % RM RM
Floating rate term loan
- Tearm loan | 6.70 6.70 414,850 472,743
Fixed rate téem |oan
- Tarm loan 1 3.00 3.0 445,323 500,000

860,203 972,743

(b) The term loane were secured by:-
()  Temioan!

. a joint and saveral guarantee of RM2,000,000 by @ direcior and & former

director;

- a corporate guarantee of RM2,000,000 by the Company; and

. a 70% guarasntee covernd by the Government of Malaysia/Syarkat
Jaminan Pembiayaan Perniagsan Berhad (‘SJPP") under the Warking

Capital Guarantee Scheme for RM* 400,000,
() Tarm logn Il

. a |oint and several guarantes of RM500,000 by a director and a former

director;

. a corporate guarantee of RMS500,000 by the Company. and

. & guarantee coverage of up to 80% by SJPP

21, TRADE PAYABLES

The noemal rade credit terms granted 10 tha Group ranging from 14 to 60 (2020 - 14 10 60) days.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated n Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

u.

23,

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Non-current
Other payables 120,141 - - .
Current
Other payables 106,276 8249 BES 4174
Goods and services tax
payable - 266,914 . -
Sales and service tax
payable - 22738 - a
Accruals 508,814 396,301 152,985 155,872
703,080 604,203 153,950 160,046

Included in current and mnmuothw;aﬂasofmo&oupbww payment payabla to a
formes employea amounted to RM186, {2020 - Nil) and RM120,141 (2020 - NII) respactively.
The gratuity payment is split nto 26 tranches and to be settled In June 2023,

REVENUE
The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Ravenue recognised over
e
Services 5431 484 8010619 - -
Licansing fee . - 349,565 235,161
Technical assistance - - 1,660,173 465,820
5,431,482 8,010,619 2.009,738 700,981
Ravenua recoqnised at 8
pomt in fime —
Sales of goods 55,500 703,251 - -
Sarvicas 450,000 154,300 - -
505,500 857,551 - -
5.036,984 8868170 2,009,738 700581
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incarporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

24. (WRITEBACK OF)VNET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS
The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021
RM RM R RM
Impakrmeant losses:
- amount owing by
subsiliaries (Note 14) - - 14719 17,350
« trade receivables
(Note 11) - 481,250 3 -
- other receivables
(Note 12) - 401 812 - -
883,062 14,719 17,350
Reversal of alowance for
mpairment losses on
contract assets (Note 13) - (481,250) -
Writeback of allowance for
mpairment losses on
irade receivables (Note 11)  (481,250) - - -
(481,250) 401,812 14718 17,350
25, (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
(Loss)Profi belore taxation
is armved at after charging/
{crediting):-
Audil fae 30,000 30,000 15.000 15,000
COVID-18-relsted ramt
CONCESSIONS:
- for the financial year
(Notes 19 and 27(a)) (37,060) (12,025) (14.950) (12,025)
«in the previous firancial
yeur (29 480) ~ -
Dapracation:
- equipment (Note 6) 280,034 297,131 92 581 85,002
- fight-of-use assets (Note 7) 361,333 338.010 95,01 63,011
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

25, (LOSS)YPROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM

Diractors’ non-tee
amaolumanis:
- sslares, alowance and
ofher benefits 451,848 401,116 90,924 121,924
- defined contribution
banafils 52 560 45,120 9,360 12,840
Impairment lass on
aguipment 175,268 - 175268
Interest expense on financal
liabikties not at fair value
mirough profit or loss:
~ bark guaraniee 86,540 51,897 - -
» bark overdrafis 829 660
« tarm loans 54 028 18,633 - -
Interest expense on lease
ligbiides {Notas 19 and
27(a)) 33.664 45,640 6,631 11,8388
Invenicries weitten down
(Note 10) 74216 - - -
Laase expenses;
- short-term leases 5248 1.248 . -
(GainyLoas on fareipgn
exchange:
reafsed

- Lnrasiised

Siaff costs:

«~ salaries, allowances and
other benefits 3,642 698 3,390,748 1,264,423 1,312,148
benefits 349,714 376,351 140,752 151,680

{50,287) 130,583 (78) .
. 84 9,444 (2.909)

investments {120,534) {93.034) . -
Interast incame on financal

assets not at fair value

tirough profit or loss (85 .468) (185,209) -
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Remistration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

26. INCOME TAX (INCOME)EXPENSE

The Group The Company
2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM
Currant tax:
« for the financial year 130,051 471,968 138,951
- undev/(over)provision 0
the pravious financial
yasr 135,886 (6,0419) - -
276,837 453 827 139,851
Deferrad tax assets
(Note 9);
« arginating and reversal
of temporary differences {1,146 508) 790,270 - -
(870,668) 1,254,197 139,851
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZT1 TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysis)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

26. INCOME TAX (INCOME)/EXPENSE (CONT'D)

A reconciliation of income tax {incomeNexpense applicable to the (loss)Vprofit before taxation at the
statutory tax rate to income tax (incomeNaxpense at the effective tax rade of the Greup and of the

Company is as follows:-
The Group The Company

2021 2020 201 2020

RM RM RM RM
(Loss)Profit belors taxation (1,489, E78) 640,391 (143,242) (1678533)
Tax at the statutory tax
rate of 24% (2020 - 24%%) (352,771} 155,854 {34,378) (402,848)
Tax effects of -
Nontaxable ncome (41,094) (45,494) {432) (15,789)
Non-deduclible expanses 12,928 107,278 21135 40,300
Deferred tax assets not
recognised during the
financial year 1,351,547 1,089,600 1,365 080 378347
Unutilised of defarred tax
assets previousty not
recognised {1,458,222) - (683.412) -
Tax-exampl income (486,042) (486,042) -
Differential in tax rates (42,000) (42,000) (42,000)
Under{Over)provision of
current tax In the
previous fnancial year: 135,886 {8,041) - -
Income tax moome/
{expanse) for the financisl
yoar (870,668) 1,264,167 139,951 -

{a) The corporate tax rate of the Company on the first RMB00,000 (2020 - RME00,000) of
chargeable Income is 17% (2020 - 17%). The tax rate spplicable to the balance of the
chargeable Income Is 24% (2020 - 24%). The taxation of olher jurisdictions ie caiculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective juisdiction.

(v} e current laxstion of the Company is In respect of value added income pursuant 10
Section 21C(2A) of the Promotion of Invesiments Act 1983 ("PIA 1888°). Other than
Section 21C(2A) of PIA 1988, the Company Is not subject to tax a5 it has been granted the
MSC Malaysia status, which qualifies the Company for the Pioneer Status incantive under
the Promotion of Invesimenis Act 1986, The Company will enjoy full exempton from
income tax on its statutory incame froen pionaer activitles for & perod of § years, from 27
August 2015 to 26 August 2020,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 {1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

Subsequently, the Company has obtained the approval from the Malaysian lnvestment
Development Authority ("MIDA™) on 14 Dacamber 2020 for the extension of the pioneer
peried from 27 August 2020 to 30 June 2021.

(b)

()

The further extension of pioneer period from 1 July 2021 fo 28 August 2025 is subject to
approval by MIDA with fulfilment of the conditions stated in the MIDA’s letter dated 14

December 2020,

As at 30 June 2021, the Company does not meest the condilions stated in the MIDA's fatter
dated 14 December 2020, and hence not eligibée for tax ncantive from 1 July 2021

onwards.

Income tax savings during the financial yaar arising from=-

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM

Utilisation of caspital
allowances:
- for the current

financial year 28,063 115,492 20,063 -
- previously not

recognisad 59,663 122,839 59,663
Utilisation of ploneer
losseas.
- previously not

recognisad 2,847 548 - 2,847,548
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

27. CASHFLOWINFORMATION

(3) Tha reconciliations of liabiities arising from financing sctivilies are a8 folows:-

Term Legss
Loans Liabdities Total
M RM RM

The Group
2021
At 1 Octobar 2020 972,743 299,906 1,272,649
Repayment of princioal (112,540) (324 849) (437,369)
Repayment of interests (54.028) {(31,018) (86,044)

(166,568) (355,865) {522,433)
Non-cash Changes
Interest expense recognised In profit or
loss (Notes 19 and 25) 54,028 33,664 87,602
Modification of leases (Note 19) . 413,148 413,148
COVID-19-related rent concessions
(Notes 19 and 25): v p—
- principal - 34,41 ‘
- Intarests - (2.648) f?MB)

54,028 400,762 463,780
At 30 September 2021 860,203 353,783 1,213,896
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

27. CASHFLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(3) The reconciliations af Sabiities arising from financing actvities are as follows (Cont'd)-

Tarm Lease

Loans Liabdities Total

M RM RM
The Group
2020
AL 1 October 2019 500,545 607,162 1,107,707
Changas in Financing Cash Flows
Proceads from drawdown 500,000 . 500,000
Repayment of principal (27,802) (296,876) {324 678)
Repayment of interests (18,883) {43,885) (62,878)

453,315 (340,871) 112,444
Non-cash Changes
Interest expense recognised in
profit or loss (Notes 19 and 25) 18,883 45,640 64 523
COVID-19-relatad rent concession
(Notas 19 and 25);
« principal - (10,380) (10,380)
- Interests - {1,645) (1.,845)

18,883 33815 524088
AL 30 September 2020 Qvr2.743 269 906 1,272,649
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

27. CASHFLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(8) The reconciliations of liabiltles srising from financing activibes are as follows (Cont'd)-

Lease
Liabllties
RM
The Company
2021
At 1 Oclober 2020 83412
Repayment of principa (57,080)
Repaymaent of interests [5.9601_
(63,050}
Nen-cash Changes
Interest expense recogrised in profit or loss (Noles 19 ard 25) 6,631
COVID-19-related rent concessions (Notes 10 and 25):
- principal {14,279,
- interasts (671)
(8.319)
At 30 September 2021 12,043
2020
At 1 October 2019 149 624
Changes in Financing Cash Flows —_—
Repayment of principal (65,732)
Repayment of inerasts (10,243)
(85,975)
Non-cash Changas
Interest expense recognised in profd or lose (Notes 18 and 25) 11,888
COVID-18-related rent concessions (Notes 19 and 25):
- principal {10.380)
- interasts (1.645)
(137)
Al 30 September 2020 83412
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
[Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

27. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(b) The total cash outflows for leases as a lessee ara as follows -

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2024 2020
RM RM RM RM
Paymant of
short-leem legses 5248 1,248 . -
Intarest paid on
lease liabitles 31,018 43,095 5960 10,243
Payment of lease
liabilities 324 849 206 876 57.090 55,732
361,113 342,119 83,050 65975

(c) The cash end cash equivalents comgrise the following:-

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM Rt R
Fixad daposits with
licensed banks 3,986,272 4,797,392 - -
Cash and bank
balances 6,644,821 578,757 2932, 111 84,362
Shori-term
Investments §,925776 2625103 - -
16,456,065 8,001,342 2932711 84,352
Less: Fuad
depasits pledged
o licensed banks
(Note 18) (3,986,272) (4,797,392)
12,470,597 3,203,950 283271 84,352

28, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

No provisions are recognised on the folowing matters as it is not probsble that a future sscrifice of
ecanomic benafits will be requirad or the amount is not capable of relable measwement:-

The Group
2021 2020
RM RM
Performance gusrantea given to third parties 5,204,959 4813709
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 {1095419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

29,

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
The Group
2021 2020
RM "M
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6,317,500 -

Deposit of RM332,500 has been paid as at the date of the reporting period, as dsclosed n Note 12
to the financiad! statements

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Identities of Related Partles

Parties dre considered to be refated to the Group If the Group or the Company has the
abllity, directly or indirectly, 1o control or jointly control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operaling decisions, or vice versa, or
whare the Group or the Campany and the parly are subject to common control,

In addition 1o the informabon detalled elsewhers in the financlal statements, the Group has
relaled parly relationships with its directors and entities within the same greup of
companies.

(b) Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

Other than those disclosed elsewhers in the financial statements, the Company also
carded out the following significant transactions with the refated parties during the financigl

year-
The Company
2021 2020
RM RM

Subsidiaries

Advances from - 1,783,000
Licensing fee 349 565 236,161
Technical assistance 1660173 465,820
Payment an behalf by 4,309,003 660,635
Payment on bahalf of 18,827 60,209

The significant outstanding balances of the related parties (including the allowance for
mpairment oss made) together with their terms and corditions are discicsed n the
respaciive notes to the financial statements.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malsysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

31.  DIVIDEND

The GroupiThe Company
2021 2020
RM KM
n rgspect of the inancial year ended S0 September 2Ue
First interim single tier dividend of RM2.15 par ardinary share 4,300,000 .

32, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's sciivities are exposed to a vanely of market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and equily price rek), credit risk and Bquidity risk. The Group's overall financial risk
managemen policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial parformance.

32,1  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POUICIES
The Group's policias in respect of the major areas of reasury activity are as follows -
(a) Market Risk
(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group & exposed to foreigh currency risk on transactions and
balances that are denominated in currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of entibies within the Group. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are pemarily Unted States Dollar ("USD") and Canadian
Dollar (*CAD"). Foreign currancy risk is monitored closely on an ongoing
basie o ensure that the net exposure Is at an acceptable level.

The Group's exposure 10 foreign currency risk (@ currency which is other
than the functional currency of the entities within the Group) based on the
carrying amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporting
peariod is summarnised balow:-
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZT1 TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysis)
Regisiration No; 201401020333 (10968419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(3)  Market Risk (Cont'd)

(i) Foreign Curency Risk (Cont'd)

Foreign Currency Exposure
United
Statas Canadian Ringgit
Dollar Dollar Malaysia Total
Rt RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Eipancigl Asgels
Trada recaivables - . 3,405,361 3,405 361
Other recaivables - . 13,636 73,636
Shoet-term
invesiments . . 5825776 5,925,776
Fixed deposits with
Scansed banks - . 3,986,272 3,988,272
Cash and bank
balances 11,138 5.882 6,527,803 6,544 821
11,136 5862 100188458 19,9353866
£ il Liabilit
Trade payables - - 976,475 76 475
Other payables and
accruals - 7,324 818,907 823,231
Tarm loans - - 860,203 860,203
- 7,324 2,862,586 2,669,909
Neat financial
assels/(labilives) 11,138 (1,842) 17,266,263 17 275967
Lass; Net tinancial
liabdlities{ assets)
denominated in the
respactive entities’
uncionsd cumencies - 1,442 {17.288,283) ({17,264 821)
Currancy axposuna 11,136 - - 11,136
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Makaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
] Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)

Farsign Currency Exposure (Cont'd)
United
States Canadlan Ringgtt
Dollar Doilsr Malaysia Total
RM RM RM RM
The Group
2020
Financial Assets
Trade receivables . - 6,171,816 6,171,816
Oter recelvables - . 1,200,000 1,200,000
Short-term
Invastments - - 2625193 2,625183
Fixed coposits wih
licensed banks . - 4,797,392 4,797 362
Cash and bank
balancas 11,080 5726 561,971 578,757
11,080 5726 15386372 15,373,158
Einancial Liabiltes
Trade payables - - 1,528214 1,528,215
Other paysbles and
sccrusls . 6,868 397 652 404 550
Dividend payablas - - 184,000 194,000
Tarm ans - - 972,743 872,743
6,898 30028610  3,089508
Net financial
assets{iabiliies) 11,060 (1,472) 12263762 12273650
Less: Net financial
liabiites/(assets)
denominaled in the
respective enlities’
functional currences - 1172 (12,264.762) (12.262,59D)
Currency exposue 11,060 . - 11,060
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Reqistration No: 201401020333 (1098418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)

i) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)

Fareign Cuwrency Exposure (Cont'd)
United
States Canadian Ringga
Dollar Dollar Malaysa Tol
RM RM RM RM
The Company
o
Foancial Assets
Amount cwing by
subsidiaries . . 7.901 T.am
Cash and bank
balances 11,138 - 2921575 2932
11,138 . 2,928,876 2,940,012
Fi i LiaDilg
Other payables and
accrusls - - 153 980 153,950
Amourd cwing o
subsidianes . 164,585 9.003 173,588

- 154,585 162,963 327,538

Nat financial assots/

(llabfities) 11,138 (164,585) 2,765.923 2612474

Less: Net financial

liablltes assets)

denominated in tha

respective entities’

functional currancies . 164585 (2.785,923) (2,601,338)

Curency expasure 11,136 - - 1138
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated i Malaysia)
Regigiration No. 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
0 Foreign Currency Rigk (Contd)
Foreign Currency Exposure (Conl'd)

United
Slates Canadian Ringgit
Dokar Dollar Malaysia Totad
M RM "M RM
The Company
2020
Einancial Assats
Amount owing by
subsidanes - . 1,041 449 1,941 448
Cash and bank
balances 11,060 - 13292 84,352
11,060 - 2014741 2,025 801
i sl Libiit
Trade payables - - 453 453
Other payables and
accruals - - 160,046 160,046
Amount oaing to
subsidiaries - 165,020 - 155020
Dividand payablas - - 184 000 194 000
- 155,020 354 495 509,519
Net financial assals/
{liablisies) 11,080 (155,020) 1660242 1516282
Less: Net financial
rabilities{assets)
danominated
in the respective
enlities” funceonal -
cATencies 155.020 (1,660.242) (1.505222)
Currency exposure 11,080 - - 11.060
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201301020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(8)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
(i) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)
Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis

Any reasonably possle changa in the foreign currency exchange rates at
the and of the reparting period against the respective funclional currencies
of the entifies within the Group does not have 8 materiad impact on the
proftfloss after taxation and other comprehensive income of the Group
and of the Company and hence, no sensilivity anslysis is prasented,

(i) Interest rale risk

Intarest rate nsk s the risk that the fair value or fute cash flows of a
financial instrument wit fluctuate because of changes in market interast
rates. The Group's exposure 10 interest rate risk anses mainly from long-
term borrowings with variable rates. The Group's policy is to obtain the
most favourable interast rates avalable,

The Group's fixed deposits with licensed banks and fixed rate term loan
are camed at amortisad cost. Therefore, thay are nat subject to inlerest
rate fisk as defined in MFRS 7 since neither the carnying amount nor the
future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market Interost
rates.

The Group's exposure o interest rale riak based on the carnyng amounts
of the financial instruments ai the end of the reporting period 5 disclosed
in Note 20 to the financial statements.

Inteves! Rale Risk Seasithity Analysis

The following table detsils the sensilivity analysis fo a reasonably possible
change in the interest rates al the and of the reporting period, with al

other variables held constant-
The Group
2024 2020
RM RM
Efects on (LossVProfit After Taxation
Increasa of 100 basis paints (bp) {3,153) (3,563)
Decrease of 100 bp 3163 3,583
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZT|I TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a) Market Risk {Cont'd)
() Equity Price Risk

The Group does not have any quoted invesiments and hence, s not
axposed fo equily price risk.

(b)  Credit Risk

The Group's exposure 10 credi rex, o tha risk of counterparties defaulling, arises
manly from trade and other recaivabies. Tha Group manages &5 exposure to credit
risk by the spplication of credit spprovals, credit limis and monitodng precadures on
an ongoing basis. For ather financia assels {including cash and bank balances), the
Group mnimises credt sk by desling exclusively with high credit raling
countarparties.

The Company's exposure to credit risk arises principaly from loans and advances
to subsidiaries, and corporate guarantee given to financial instilutions for credit
faclitios granted to cortain subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of
these subsidiaries regulardy and repayments made by the subsidaries.

(1) Credit Risk Concentration Profile

The Group's major concendration of credit risk relxtes to the amount owing
by & customer which constituted approximatety 9% of ks Srade
receivables at the and of the reporting period,

(i) Exposure to Creds Risk

Al the end of the reporting period, the maximum expesure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
racognised in the statements of financiat position of the Group and of he
Company afler deducting any allowance for mpairment losses (where
applicabla).

In addition, the Company’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk also includes
corporate quarantees provided to its subsilianes as dsclosed under the
"Malurity Analysis’ of ltem (c) below, ropresenting the outstanding banking
{acittios of the subsidiaries as al the end of the reporting peviod.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(i) Assassment of Impairment Losses

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the financial
assets at amortised cost and contract assets are credit impaired

The gross carrying amounis of those financial assets are written off when
there is no reasonabia axpectation of recovery {i.e. the deblor does not
have assals or sources of income to generate sufficient cash flows fo
repay the debt) despite they are still subject 1o enforcement activities.

Trade Recefvabies and Confract Assels

The Group applies the simpifled approach to measuring expected cradi
sses which uses a lifelime expected loss allowance for &l trixde
racalvables and confract assets,

To measure the expacied credh losses, trade receivables and contract
assels have been grouped based on sharad credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets refale to unbiled work in prograss
and have substantisly the same risk characlenstics as the trade
receivables for the same lypes of contracts. Therefore, the Group
concluded that the expected ioss rates for frade receivables are a
reasonable approximabon of the loss rates for he contract assels.

Generally, the Group considers any recaivables having significant
balances and more than 12 months overdue are deemed credil impaired.
However, the managemen! will assess (he impairment on each receivable
on a case-by-case basis based on customer's past payment irack record,
crecitadility and any setflement plan = place.

The expected loss rafes are based on the payment profiles of sales over a
period of 12 monhs from the measurement date and he corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this penod. The historical loss
rales are adjusted to reflect current and forwarddooking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers 1o seitie ther
debls.

For services conlracts, the Group assassed the expected oredil loss of
aach customer indwidually based on their financial information and past
wands of payments as here are only a few customers. All of these
custiomers have a low risk of default as they have 3 strang capacty fo
meal thesr dabls,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
{b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(ik) Assessment of Imparment Losses (Conlt'd)
Trade Receivables and Confract Assots (Conf'd)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and the loss allowances
calcufated under MFRS 9 for both trade recevables and conlract assets

are summarised balow:-
Gross Individual  Collective  Carmrying
Amourt  Impakment Impairmment  Amount
RM RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Not past due 27,750 - - 27,750
Past due:
- less than 3 months - - . -
-3to 6 months 3377611 - - 3,377,611
- over 6 months . - - -
Trade recevablas 3,405,381 - - 3,405,361
Contract assats 119,216 - - 119,216
3,524 577 - . 3,524 577

2020
Nol past due 2,189,199 - - 2,189,183
Past du:
-less than 3 months 3,680,683 . - 3,580,893
- 3 to § months 481,250  (481,260) - =
-~ over 6 months 401,730 - . 401,730
Trace racalvables 6,653,066 (481,250) - 6,171 816
Contract assels 8,361,532 - - 8,361,532

15,014 508  (481,250) - 14,533 348

The movements in the loss allowances in respect of vade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed m Notes 11 and 13 fo the financiad
statements.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regslration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(b)  Cradit Risk (Cont'd)
(i) Assassment of Impairment Lossas (Cort'd)
Cther Receivables

The Group applies the 3.stage general approach to measuring expected
credit losses for il other recalvables. Under this approach. the Group
assesses whethar there & a signficant increase in credit risk on the
recaivables by comparing ther rigk of defaull as at the reporting date with
the risk of defaull as at the date of initiad recognition based on avaikable
reasonable and supportable forward-ooking information, Regardless of
the assessment, a significant ncrease in credit risk is presumed If 8
recaivable = more than 30 days past due In making 8 contractus
payment,

Thae Group considers a recevable i credt impaired when the recaivable
= in signdficant financial cifficulty, for instances, the receivable is in breach
of financial covenants ar insalvent. Receivables thal are credit impaired
are sssessed Indeidually while other recewsbles are assessed on a
collectiva basis.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and the loss alowances
calculated for other receivables are summarised balow:-

Gross L¥etime Loss Carrying
Amount Allowarce Amoun

RM M RM
The Group
2021
Low credit risk 73,636 - 73,636
Credit impairad 401,812 {401.812) -
475 448 (401.812) 73,636
2020
Low cradit risk 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Credit mpaired 401,812 (401,812) .
1,601,812 (401,812) 1,200,000

The movements in the loss allowances are disclosed in Note 12 o the
finandal statemenls.,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated n Malaysa)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
{il)  Assessment of Impairment Losses {Cont'd)
Fixed Deposits with Licensed Banks, Cash and Bank Bafances

The Geoup considars these banks and financal instdutions have low credi
risks. In addition, scme of the bank balances are by Govemment agencies.
Therefore, the Group = of the view that the loss alowance is immaterial and
henca, it is not provided for.

Amount Owling By Subsidisries (Non-frade Bafancs)

The Company apples the 3-slage general approach to measwing expected
credt losses for all ntercompany balances. Generaly, the Company
considers koans and advances o subsidaries have low credt rsks. The
Company assumes thal there is a significant increase In credit nsk when a
subsidiary's financied positian delericrates signficantly. As the Company Is
able to determine the tmng of paymenss of the subsidary’ loans and
advances whan they are payable, the Company considers the loans and
advances to be in dedault when the holding comparny is nat able 1o pay when
demanded. The Company considers a subsidiary’s kan o advance to be
cradt iImpaked whon the subsidiary is unlikely lo repay its loan or aavanca in
full or the subsidiary & continuously loss making or the subsidiary is having a
deficit in @s total equity.

The Company determines the probablity of default for these loans and
advances individually using intemg information availabie,

The information abowt the exposure 1o cradit risk and the loss allowances
calculatad for the smount owing by subsidanes are summarsed balow:-

Gross Lifetime Loss  Carrying

Amount Allowance Amount
RM RM RM
The Company
2021
Cradil mpaired 6,590,330 (G,590,330) -
2020
Credit impaired 6,499,468 {6,480, 468) -
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
{Incorporated in Malaysa)
Registration No, 201401020333 (1086413 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(¢) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group
practises prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash bafances and
the avaidabiity of funding througn certain committed credit faclities,

Maturity Analysis

The foliowing tsble sets out the maturity profile of the financial fabiitiee at the enc
of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (Including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on the
rates at the end of the reporting period):-

EMectve Cantractual Over
Intorest  Camying Undecounted  Within 1-5 8
Rate Amourt  Cash Flows 1 Year Yaars Years

Y i RM RM M M

The Group

2021

Noo-gacivative

Financia) Linkiites

Trade payables . 978,475 B76.ATS 878,475 -
Other paryables

and accuals . 823231 823,731 703,090 12041 -
Lease liabites 795 353,793 373,000 301,600 71400 .
Team loans 300-670 860203 586373 203,168 736,521 46,684
3013702 3158079 2184233 Q28,062 448,684

2020

Non-ceditive

Enancial Labilties

Trace payabies - 1528215 1528215 1528215 . -
Other payables

and accnaals - 404,550 404,550 404 550 - .
Dividand payables 194,000 184,000 194,000 -

Lease labiites 492.-796 299608 323178 307176 16,000 .
Teorm loars 300-670 972,743 1163777 168568 012,672 184537

3330414 3613718 2600509 B28.672 1B4.537
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorparated n Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1098418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
321 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(c) Liquidity Risk {Cont'd)
Matully Ansiysie (Cont'd)
Effectiva Contractual Owar
Interest  Carrying Undiscourded  Wihin 1-8 5
Rata Amount  Cash Flows | Yoaur Yesrs Years
% RM RM RM M RM
The Company
2021
Other payabias
and accruals - 153,950 153950 153950 - -
Amount dwing to
subsidiaries - 173584 173,588 173,588 - -
Leass iabiities 795 12,043 13,000 13,000 . .
Financial guarantos
contracts in relation
0 corporate
guarantes given o
& subsdiary - - 6155362 6,156,162 - -
339 581 6495700 6485700 -
2020
Einanclal Liakilmes
Trade payahbles - 453 453 453 - -
Other payables
and sccrusls . 160,045 160,046 160 046 . -
Amgurt owing to
subsdanes - 155,020 156020 155,020 - -
Dhvidend payables . 194,000 184 000 194 000 - .
Lease liabilkes 7.95 83412 91,000 78,000 13,000 -
Financisl guarantes
contracts in relation
10 conporate
guaraNies gven 1
a subsicary - 4222143 4222743 - .
S02931 4823262 4810262 13000 -
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regslration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

322

a3

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group defines capital s the total equity and debt of the Group. The objective of the
Group's capital management is o maintain an optimal capital structure and ensurng
availablity of funds in order 1o support its businesses and refated shareholders vakue, To
achiave this objecive, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of
changes in economic conditions, such 8s adjusting the amount of dividend payment,
returning of capital to shareholdars or ssuing new shares.

The Group monitors and mainaing a prudent level of total debt to lole equity ratio w0
optimise shareholder value and to ensure compliance with debt covenants and reguiatory,
If any

These was no change in the Group's approach o capital management duing the financial
year.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
2021 2020 201 2020
RM am RM RM

Financial Assets
Ealr Value Through
Profit or Loss
Shorl-term investments
(Nate 15) 59257768 2,625,193 - .
Amortised Cost
Trade recevables
(Note 11) 3,408,361 8,171,816 - .
Other recanvables
(Note 12) 73,636 1,200,000 . -
Amount owing by
subsdanes (Note 14) . - 7.2 1,941 449
Fixed deposils with
licensed barks
(Nota 18) 3,686,272 4,787 302 -
Cash and bank
balances 6,544 821 578,757 2932711 84,352

14,010,090 12.747 365 2,840,012 2,025,801
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incarporated in Malaysia)
Reqistration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
323 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM RM RM RM

Financial Liability
Amortisad Cost
Trade paysbies
{Nota 21) 078,475 1.528,215 - 453
Other payables and
accruals (Nose 22) 823,21 404,550 153950 160,046
Amount owing to
subsidiaries (Note 14) i . 173,588 155,020
Dividend payables . 194,000 - 184,000
Term loans (Note 20) 860,203 972,743 -

2,659,909 3,099,508 327,838 509,519

324  GAINS OR LOSSES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
2021 2020 201 2020
RM RM R =—M

Financial Assets

Egir Valye Through

Profil oc Loss

Next gains racognised

In prafit ar loss 120,584 93,034 - -

Amodised Cost.

Net gans/[losses)

recognised in profit or

loss 135,758 (848,430) {9,368) (14,447)

Financial Liabitity

Amodised Cost
Net losses recognised
in profit or loss (1561,187) (71,440)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
{incorporated = Malaysia)
Reagistration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
325  FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

The fair values of the financial assets and financial kabliitles of the Group and of the Company which are maturing within the nexi 12 months
approximated their carrying amounis due to the relstively short-term maturity of the financisl Instruments or repayable on cemand terms.

The following table sets out the fair value profile of financial Instruments that are carried at fair vadue and those not carried al fair value at the end

of the raporting period:-
Fair Vaiue of Financial Instruments Fair Value of Financia Instruments Towal
Carried Al Fair Value Not Carrled At Fair Value Fair Carrying
Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Lavel 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Value Amounl
RM RM RM RM RM RM RAM RM
The Group
2021
Enancal Assat
Short-term nvestments,
- money markel funds 5825776 - - - - - 5925776 5925776
ili
Term loans:
- fixed rate - - - - 404,507 - 404,507 445323
« floating rate - - - - 414,880 - 414 880 414 880
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020323 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
325 FAIRVALUE INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Far Value of Financial Instruments Far Value of Financial Instruments Total
Carried Al Fair Value Not Carried At Far Value Fair Carryng
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Amount
RM RM RM R RM RM RM RM

The Group
2020
Financial Assel
Short-term Investments:
- money mariket fund 2,625,193 - - - . - 2,625,193 2,625,193
Term loans:
- fixed rate - - - - 456,587 - 456 987 §00,000
- floating rate - - - - 472743 - 472743 472,743
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Raegstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

32.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
325 FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONT'D}

(@)

(b)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Carried st Fair Value

(h

(

The fak value of money market funds is delermined by refarence %
statements provided by the respectve financial institulions, with which the
investments werae entered into &t the reporling date.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the financial yeer.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value

The farr values, which are for disclosure purposes, have been determined using the
following basis:-

(

(1)

The fakr value of the Group's term loan that cary floating inlerest rales
approimated ils carying amounts as they are repriced 10 markat interest
rates on or neer the reporting date,

The far values of Group's term kan Mal carry fixed interest rate are
determined by discounting the ralavant future contractsal cash flows using
current market intarest rates for simiar instruments al the end of he reporting
period. The irferest rates used to discount the estmated cash flows ae as
follows -

The Group
2021 2020
% %
Term an (fixad rate) 6.70 6.70
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated n Mataysia)
Regatration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

33.  SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

On 11 March 2020, the Workd Health Orgarisation declered the COVID-19 outbreak as glodal
pandemic. Following the daclaration, the Government of Malaysia has on 18 March 2020 imposed
the Movement Control Order MCO") and subsequantly entered into various phases of the MCO to
curb the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic in Malaysia.

The management has assessed the impact on the Group and of the opinion that there wera no
materal financial impacts arsing from the pandemic. Neverthedess, the Group has taken and will
continue to take neceesary steps to safeguard and preserve &3 financial condiion, emphasising on
liquidity management to meet #s continuing financial commitments and liquidily needs.

As ot the date of authorisation of this report, the COVID-18 pandemic situation is evolving and
uncestain. The Group will continue to actively monitor and manage s operations to minimise any
impact artsing from the COVID-19 pandemic.

34. SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 October 2021, AZT) Engineering (M) Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
enlered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement for the purchase of a unit of thvee storey semi-
getached Industrial factory buikding beld under Indvidual tile H.S.(D) 286842, PT 5934, Pakan
Pucheng Perdana, Dasrah Petaling, Selangor for a total purchase consideration of RME,650,000,

Deposit of RM332,500 has been paid as at the dale of the reporting peried, 85 disciosed In Note 12
to the financial statements.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Yhodindorhembysubml&wrepmammawmﬁmnﬁIMmuuo(thwamdm
Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2022,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
mcompanyispdmlpallymgodhnwbwmesdmumalddmbpnmofplmfomsddy

system, business davelopment and licensing of intellectusl property rights as well as Investimen! holding,
The principal activilies of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements,

RESULTS
The Group The Company
RM RM
(Loss¥Profit after taxation for the financial year (1,222,153) 3885172
Attributable to:-
Owners of the Company (1,222,153) 3885172
DIVIDENDS
Dividends paid or declared by the Company since 30 September 2021 are as follows:-
R
Ordinary Share
N respect of ancigl year ended 30 September 2022
First Interim single tier dividend of RM1.7755 per ordinary share, paid on
30 Seplember 2022 3,551,000

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from resarves or provislons during the financial year other than those
dsclosed in the financial statements,

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financist year-

(a) there were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company; and

(b) there were no ssues of debentures by the Company.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company la any person 1o take Up any unissued
shares in the Company,

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the direcior look
reasonable steps 10 asceetain that action had been taken in relation 1o the writing off of bad debts and the
making of aiowance for impalrment losses on receivables and satisfied himself that there are N0 known
bed debls and that adequate aliowsnce had been made for imparment Joeses on roceivables.

AL the date of this report, the director is not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of
bad debts, or the additional allowance for impaikment losses on receivables in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Compary.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the drecior fook
reasonsbie steps to ensure that any cument assets, which were unllkely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business, including their value as shown In the accounting receeds of the Group and of the
Company, have been wriltan down to an ameunt which they might be expactad 50 o realise.

Al the date of this repon, the direcior s not aware of any circumstances which would render the values
atirbuled 1o the current assels in the financial statements misleading,

VALUATION METHODS

Al the date of this report. the director is not aware of any clrcumstances which have arisen which render
sdherenca 1o the exisling methods of valuation of assets or liabites of the Group and of the Company
misleading or Inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Al the date of this repon, there does nol exist:-

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the
finangial year which secures the liabdities of any other person: or

(b} any contingent liablity of the Group and of the Cempany which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

No contingent or other liabliity of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or i Tikely to
become enforceable within the pericd of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the
opinion of the direcior, wil or may substantially affect the abdity of the Group and of the Company 1o meat
their chiigations when they fall due.
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incarparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

Al the date of this repon, the director is not aware of any circumstances not otherwise deall with in this
report o¢ the financial stataments of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated
in the financial statemenis misleadng

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year wers not, in the
opinion of the director, substantialy affected by any em, transaction or event of 8 material and unusual
nature.

There has not arisen in the interval betwean the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction or event of 8 materlal and unusual nature fikely, in the cpinion of the director, Lo atfect
wbewnﬁa!yﬁumulbofihoopuaﬁomdm&oupanddmc«npmy&rmﬂnanctslyeatlmmlch
this report is made.

DIRECTORS

The names of director who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report is as folows:-

Lian Wah Seng

DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS

According to the registar of direciors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of
the financial year in shares of the Company and fis related corporations during the financie year are as

follows:-

<+—————— Number of Ordinary Shares ———————#

1 .103021 Bought Sold 30.9%022

The Company
Diroct interest
Lian Wah Seng 450,000 - - 450,000
Indirect inferest
Lian Wah Seng 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000

By virlue of his sharehaldings in the Company, Lian Wah Seng is deemed to have interasts in shares in the
Company and &s related corporations during the fimancial year 1o the extent of the Campany’s interests, in
accordance with Seclion 8 of the Companies Act 2016,
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regsiration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X}

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

DIRECTOR'S BENEFITS

Sinca tha end of the pravious financial year, no director has recened or become antitied to receive ary banefi
{other than directors’ remuneration as disciosed in the "Directors’ Remuneration” of ths report) by reason ofa
contract made by the Company or & ralated corporation with the director or with a fim of wivich the drector is 3
member, or with & company in which the director has & substantial financial inlerest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party 10 any
arrangements whose object Is lo enable the direciors o acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Campany or any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION

The detaiis of the direclor's remunerstion paid or payable 1o the director of the Company during the
financial year are as follows:-

The Group The Company
RM RM
Salaries, allowance and other benefits 406,462 75,770
Defined contribution benefits 47,400 7.800
453 852 83,670

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST

The Company mainiains 8 Directors’ and Officers’ Liabllity Insurance Policy on a group basis. During the
financial year, the amount of indemniy coverage and insurance premium paid for the directors of the Group
were RM3.000.000 and RM11,140 respectively. No indemnity was given to or insurance effected for auditors
of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

The detals of the Company’s subsidiaries are discdosed In Note 5§ to the financisl statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The significant event during the financial year is disclosed in Note 35 1o the financial statements.
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incarporated in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 {1086419 - X)

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

AUDITORS
The auditors, Crowe Mataysia PLT, have axpressed their wilingness to continue in office

The auditors’ remunesation of the Group and of the Company for the financial year were RM38,000 and
RM 18,000 respectively.

Smned in accordance with 3 resolution of (he director dated 30 March 2023,

>

Lian Wah Seng
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENT BY A DIRECTOR
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Lian Wah Seng, being the scie director of AZTI Technology Sdn. Bhd., state that, in my opinicn, the
financlal statemants set cut on pages 11 1o 82 are drawn up N accordance with Malays@an Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reparting Standards and the recuirements of the Companies
Act 2016 In Malaysia 50 as to give a true and fair view of the financial posilion of the Group and of the
Company as of 30 Saptember 2022 and of their financial performance and cash fiows for tha financial year
aendead on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the director dated 30 March 2023.

-~

-

Lian Wah Seng

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Lian Wah Seng, MIA Membership Number. 17404, being the director primarlly responsible for the
financial management of AZT1 Technology Sdn. Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely deciare that the financial
statoments sel out on pages 11 to 82 are, {o the best of my knoafedge and belief, carrect and | make this
solemn declaration conscientiousiy believing the deciarabon to be tfrue, and by virtua of the Statutory
Dedarations Act 1960.

Subscrbed and solemnly declared by the abovementioned
Lian Wah Seng. NRIC Number: 720524-10-5141

Al

e

Lian Wah Seng
£-7-2, Blok B, Tingkat 1, Lt 2
iMegan Avonue 8
Mo 12, Jalan Yap Kwan £2ng,
11450, Kuala Lumnur
Page &
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CTO\NE Crows Malwywis PLY

FIMIGECLS LLPOCTRNLT-LOA) K AT 9018
Crartered Accourtanis

Lavad 16, Tower C, Mogan Averee 1|
12, Jakans Yap Kwan Seng
50450 Kuak Lumpur

Malaysin

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  Mun +8 032788 903
AZT| TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. Fax v5 03 2788 9698

(incorporated in Malaysia) NIRRT
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096410 - X)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have awdited the financial statements of AZTI Technology Sdn. Bhd,, which com prise the statements of
financial position as at 30 September 2022 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of peofil
or loss and othar comprehensive mocome, stalements of changes in eguity and slatements of cash flows of
the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes 1o the financial statements,
Including a summary of significant accounting policies, 35 set out on pages 11 to 92

In aur opinkn, the accompanying financial stalements give a true and fair view of the financlal position of
{he Group and of the Campany a8 at 30 September 2022, and of ther financial parfformance and thei cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
Interrational Financial Reporting Standards and the requiraments of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audht in accordance with spproved standards on auditing in Malaysia and Intemational
Standards on Auditing. Our responsbilties under those standards are further descrived In the Auditors”
Rosponsibilles for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion

Independence and Other Eihical Responsibilities

We are iIndepandent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (an Professional
Elhics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("By-Laws") and the Inernational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountamts' Infermafional Code of Ethics for Professionsl Accountants
(including Indernational Indepandence Standards) (“IESBA Code”). and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiitias In accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Cade.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Direclors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and aof the Compary and
our suditors’ repar thergan,

Qur opirion on the financal statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the Direclors’
Report and we 0o not express any form of sssurance conclusion therecn.

In conneclion with our audit of the financal statements of the Group and of the Company, our res pansibility
is 10 read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Direclors’ Reporn is materially
inconsistant with the financial statemants of the Group and of the Campany or our knowledge obianed in
the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially missiated

¥, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there |8 3 matenal missiatement of the
Direciors’ Repord, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard.

Page 7
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Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZT|I TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. (CONT'D)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 . X)

Responsibllities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directers of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
arxi of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Mataysian Financial Reporting
Standards, Inernational Financial Reporting Standards and the requiremeants of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The direclors are also responsible for such nternal control as the directors determine is
necassary to enable the preparation of financal statements of the Group and aof the Company that are fres
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in praparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Company's abiity to contimue as a going concern, disdosing, as applicable,
matters related 10 gaing concem and using the going concarm basis of accounting uniass the directors
aither intand to kquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but ta do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objeciives are o oblain reasonable assurance sbout whether the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an audilors’ report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but
is not @ guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with approved standards on audting in Malaysia
and International Slandards on Auditing wil a'ways detect a material misstatement whan It exisis
Misstatemants can arise from frawd or error and are considered maleral ¥, mdividually or in 1he aggregate,
they could reasanably be expected to nfluence the economic decisions of usars taken on the basis of
these financial statemants.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. we exercse professions! judgement and maintan professional skepticism
throughout the audt. We also -

. dentify and assess the risks of material misslaternent of the financal sislemeants of the Group and
of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audt procedures responsive lo
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriate (o provide & basis for our
opinion. The rigk of not datecting & materal misstatement resuting from fraud is hagher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
msrepresentations, or the override of infernal contral.

. Obtan an understandng of nternal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit procedwes
that are approgriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
affectiveness of the Group's and of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the apperopriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estrnates and refated dsclosures made by the direclors.
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Y

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. (CONT'D)

(Incorporaled in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemaents (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropristeness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of acceunting
and, based on the audil evidence oblaned, whether 3 material uncartanty exists relaled to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Company’s ability to continue as
& going concem. I we conciude that a material unceranty exists, we are required %o draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group anc of ihe
Company or, if such discloswres are madeguate, o modfy cur opinkon, Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to 1the date of owr auditors’ reporl. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Graup or the Company to cease to continue &s a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stalements of the Group
and of the Company. including the disciosures, and whather the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a mannes thst achieves
fair preseration.

Obtain sufficlent appropriate awdit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitles or
business aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group.
Wa sre respansible for the direction, supervision and perfarmance of the group sudil. We ramain
salely respansibie for our sudit opinian.

We communicate wih the direciors regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant aud findings, induting any significant deficlences in Internal control that we identify
during our sudi.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accorcance with the requirements of {he Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report thal the
subsidianes of which we have not acted as sudiiors, are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
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Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AZT| TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD. (CONT'D)

(Incorporalad in Malaysia)
Registration No- 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as 8 body, in accordance with Section 266 of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysa and for no other purposa. We do not assume respansaility to any
other parson for the content of this report.

Crowe Malaysia PLT Chin }& Seong
201506000008 (LLPOOMBB17-LCA) & AF 1018 03030/01/2025 J
Chartered Accountiants Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
3 0 MAR 2023
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Makaysia)
Reglistration No: 201401020333 (1066418 - X}

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RM RM RM RM
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in subsidiaries 5 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Property and egquipment 6 7,250,519 362,007 1,862 -
Right-of-use assets 7 147,296 346,992 60.198 11,5802
Intangible sssels -] - - - .
Deferred tax assets ] 826,444 927,928 744,000 -
8,224 2509 1,636,925 2.826,080 2.011,502
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 10 - - = .
Triade receivables 11 406 834 3,408,361 - -
Other recaivables, deposits
and prepayments 12 615,840 122,931 62,662 42 862
Contract assels 13 . 119,216 - 3,845,558
Amount owing by subsidiaries 14 . - 2,403,163 7,301
Short-term Invastments 15 26,208 5,925776 - -
Current tax assets 176,681 241 944 46,4960 -
Fixed deposits with licensed
banks 16 4,327,665 3,966,272 - .
Cash and bank baftances 6,351,735 6,544 821 455,405 293211
11,905,463 20,946,321 2,968,190 6,828,432
TOTAL ASSETS 20,120,722 22.583,246 5,794,250 8,839,934
The annaxed notas form an mlegral part of these financial statarments. Page 11
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated n Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RM RM RM RM
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17 2,000,000 2,000,000 2.000,000 2,000,000
Retalned profits 3,513,985 8,287,138 605,880 361,708
Fareign exchange translation
resarve 18 (438.955) (2338,227) - -
TOTAL EQUITY 5,075,030 10,048,911 2695 280 2,369,708
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payable 19 - 120,141 - .
Lease fabifties 20 12,043 70,464 12,043 -
Long-term borowings 2 6013348 702,811 - -
Deforred tax liabilities a - 167,236 - a
6,025,391 1,060,652 12,043 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 24 978,719 76,475 11,161 -
Canlrsct fabiities 13 6,974,289 9,326,362 2686,599 6,111,610
Other payables and accruals 19 541,921 703,080 147,653 153,950
Amount owing to subsidiaries 14 - - 169,545 173,588
Lease iabifities 20 141,833 280,347 71.369 12,043
Shart-term borrowings 21 392,528 160,374 - -
Current tax iabities - 27,035 - 27,035
9,029,301 11,473,683 3,086,327 6,478,226
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,064,662 12,5634 335 3,068,370 6,478.226
TOTAL EQUITY AND v
LIABILITIES 20,129,722 22,583,246 5,794,250 8,835,934
Tho annaxsd notes form an inlegral part of these financial stste mants, Page 12
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorparated in Malsysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RM RM RM RM
REVENUE 25 8,427,289 5,936,984 4,679,154 2,009,738
COST OF SALES (6,023,134) {4,193 967) (705,187) (783,337)
GROSS PROFIT 2,404,155 1,743,017 3,973,987 1,246,401
OTHER INCOME 154,179 325,381 604,139 15,026
2,568 334 2,068,388 4 578,126 1,261,427

SELLING AND MARKETING

EXPENSES (165,482) (75.050) (36,150) (2.437)
ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSES (2,568,518) (3,098,822) (800,654) (911,1489)
OTHER EXPENSES (282,763) (743,288) (80,0635) (469,733)
FINANCE COSTS (148,002) {102,356) (11,887) {8.631)
WRITEBACK OF/

{IMPAIRMENT LOSSES)

ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 26 - 481,250 (9,961} (14,718)
(LOSSYPROFIT BEFORE

TAXATION 27 {656.471) (1,469,878) 3,629,399 (143,242)
TAX (EXPENSE)/INCOME 28 (565,682) 870,668 255,773 (139,951) }
(LOSSNPROFIT AFTER

TAXATION (1.222,153) (599,210) 3,885,172 (283,193}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
lteen. that May be Reclassified

Subsequently fo Profil or Loss
Foreign currency transiaton

differences (200,728) (381,726)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

(EXPENSESYINCOME FOR

THE FINANCIAL YEAR (1.422,881) (960,938) 3,685,172 (283,193)
The annexed notes form an inlegral part of these fnancial statements, Page 13
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X}

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
(LOSSYPROFIT AFTER
TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE
T0:-
Craners of the Company (1.222,153) (599,210) 3885172 (283,193)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
(EXPENSES)INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company (1,422 .88%) {980,036) 3,885,172 (283,193)
The annaxed noles form an integral part of thess franca stataments, Pago 14
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

The Group
Balance at 1,10.2020

Loss after taxation for the
financial year

Other comprabensive ncome for
{he financial year:
- Foreign currency ransiation
differences

Total comprehensive expanses
for the financial year

Distributions to owners of the
Company:
- Dividend 33

Balance at 30.9.20211.10.2021

Loss afer taxation for the
financial year

Oer comprehensive income for
the financial year:
- Foragn currency transiation
differences

Total comprehensive expenses
for the financial year

Distr&utions 10 owners of the
Company:
- Dividend 33

Balance at 30.9,2022

Foreign
Exchange
Share Retained Transiation Total
Capitad Profits Reserves Equity
RA "M M RM
2,000,000 13,186,348 143,458 15,329 847
- (599,210) - (588,210)
- - (381,728) (381,726)
- (588.210) (381,728) (880,936)
= ‘4nm-m) v (‘Im)m)
2,000,000 8,287,138 (238,227) 10,0480M
= (1.222,153) - (1,222,153)
- - (200,728) (200,728)
- (1,222,153) (200,728} {1,422,831)
- (3.651,000) - (3.551,000)
2,000,000 3,513,985 {438 955) 5075030

The annaxad notes form an integral par of thess Srancial stalements.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (10956416 - X}

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

Share Retalned Total
Capital Profis Equity
Note RM RM RM
The Company
Batance at 1.10.2020 2,000,000 4,944 901 6,944,901
Loss after taxation/Total comprehensive
expenses for the fimancal year - (283,193) (283,183)
Distributions to owners of the Company:
- Dividend a3 - {4,3200,000) {4,300,000)
Balance at 30.9,2021/1.10.2021 2,000,000 361,708 2,361,708
Profit afler taxation/Total comprehensive
expensas for the financial year - 3,885,172 3885172
Distributions to owners of the Company:
- Dividend 33 - (3,661,000) (3,551.000)
Balance at 30.9.2022 2,000,000 605,880 2,685,880
The arnexed notes form an integral part of thess Minancial statoments. Page 18
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS (FORYFROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss)Profit before laxation (656,471) {1,469.878) 3,628 398 (143,242)
Adpisiments for-
COVID-19 related rent

concassions (1.980) (66,540) {1,850) {14,950)
w property and equipment 1929719 280,034 418 92551
- ightof-use assets 337,178 361,333 68,786 89,011
Inerast expense:
- 2ase labdities 29,183 33,664 11,887 6,831
- pthers 123618 151,187 - -
Inventones writien down - 742168 - -
Income from shortderm

Investments (84,392) (120.584) - 5
Imerast income (66,648) (85,408) - .
Impairment losses:
- amount awing by subsidaries - - 9.961 14,719
- property and equipment - 176268 - 175,269
Wiiteback of allowance far

Impairment logses an trade

receivables . (431,250) ~
Unreall fass on foregn

mcch;;: - - 3,608 8444
Opera loss Yorofit bafore

wuhit::? c(aplld changes (126,503) (1,148,007) ArR.108 209,433
Decreaselincrease) n

contract sssals 118218 8.242,316 3,845,558 {160,492)
(Decragse)Increass n contract

labilities (2352073) 3711230 (3.425011) 5,531,766
Decrease/increase) in rade

and other recelvables 3105518 4,080,041 {19,800} (7.431)
(Decrease)Increasa in rade

and othes payables (279,068) (613,764) 4,884 (200,549)
(IncreaseyDecreass in amount

awing by subsidaries - - (2.414271) 1,914,825
(Dacrease increases in

amount owing 1o subsidiares - - {4,043) 18,5658
CASH FROM OPERATIONS

CARRIED FORWARD 467,052 14,271,816 1,709,408 7,306,120
The annaxed notes form an integral pant of thase financisl ststements. Page 17
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1088418 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

CASH FROM CPERATIONS
BROUGHT FORWARD

Tax paid

Interest posd

NET CASH (FOR)FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS (FORYFROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Repayment from\Advances o)
subsidiaries

[Increase)Dacrease of fixed
daposits pladged with licensed
banks

Incorne from short-lecm
Investmants

Inerest income recelved

Purchasa of proparty snd
equipment 29a)

NET CASH (FORYFROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FOR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Interest paid 29(b)
Repayment of:
- legse kabilities 2%(b)
- hire purchase payables 28(b)
- feem loans 2b)

NET CASH FOR FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group The Company
2022 201 2022 2021
RM RM R RM
467062 14,271,816 1,749,408 7.306,120
(593.408) (616,488) - v
(10,420) (87,168} (562.222) (79.862)
(136,808) 13,558,161 1,147 184 7.226,258
o 4,840 (4,840)
(241,593) 811,120 - -
84,392 120,584 - -
66,645 85468 - .
(1,315991) (104.,527) (2,280) (10,008)
(1,505,544) 912,645 2,580 (14,349)
(3,551,000) (4,300,000) (3,551,000) (4,300,000)
(142,.251) (85,044) (11,827) (5,560)
(332,527) (299,202) (64,223) (57,090)
(2,582) (25,847) - z
(219,816) {112,540) P
{4,248,576) (4,822,433) (3,627,050 (4,363.080)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2022 201 2022 2021
Note RM RM RM RM
NET (DECREASE yINCREASE
IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,891.926) 9,648,373 (2.477 306) 2,848,358
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE TRANSLATION {200,728) (381,726) . -
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 12,470,597 3,203,950 283271 84 3852
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 28(d) 6,377,940 12,470,997 455,405 2,832
The annaxed notes form an integral part of these financisl sistements, Page 19
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tha Company is a private limited lability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. Tha
regstered office and principal place of business are ag follows:-

Registered offica 2 No. 35-10, The Boulevard,
Mid Valley City,
Lingkaran Syed Pulra,
59200 Kuala Lumpur,
Wikayah Persekutuan.

Principal place of busness 28, Jatan PPU 2A,
Taman Perindustrian Puchong Utama,
47100 Puchong.

The financial statements were authocised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resolution of the directors dated 30 March 2023,

2 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of research and development of platfarm
safety systam, buskness davelopment and licensing of intellectual property rights as well as
investrment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are sat out in Note 5 to the financsal
statements,

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modfied
to nclude other bases of valualion as dsdosed in other sactions under significant accounting policies,
and in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRSs”), Infernational Fnancisl
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

31 Puwing the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting
standards andlor nferpretations (including the consequential amendments, If any)-

MFRSs andior IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendmaents)

Amendmeants to MFRS 8, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The adoption of the above sccounting standards andior interpretations (incuding the
consequential amendments, il any) did not have any matarial mpact on the Group's
financlal statements,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(incorporsted in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

32

The Group has not applied in advance tha following accounting

standaros andlor

Interpretations {including the consequential amendments, # any) that have been issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB®) but are not yet effective for the

current financial year:-

MFRSs andlor IC Interpretstions {Including The Consequential
Amendments)

MFRS 17 Insurance Condracts

Amendments 1o MFRS 3: Raference to the Conceptus! Framework

Amandments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of
Assals batween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments 1o MFRS 16: Leasa Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to MFRS 17; Insurance Contracts

Amendment to MFRS 17: Initia Application of MFRS 17 and MFRS
9 - Comparative Information

Amendment to MFRS 101: Classfication of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Amendments lo MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amenoments to MFRS 112; Deferred Tax related 1o Assels and
Labiities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to MFRS 116; Property, Plant end Equipment -
Procaeds befora intended Use

Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiing a
Canfract

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

Effective Date
1 January 2023
1 January 2022

Deferred
1 Janusary 2024
1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2022

1 January 2022
1 January 2022

The sdoption of the above accounting standards andor inlerpretations (including the
consequential amendments, #f any) & expected to have no material impact on the financial

statements of the Group upon thelr nitial application.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incomorated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty

Management believes thal there are no key assumpiions made concaming the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have @ signficant
nsk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amaounts of assets and liabiities within
the next financial year other than as disclosed below:-

(1) Impairment of Trade Receivables and Contract Assats

The Group uses the simplified approach fo estimate a lifetime expected credit loss
sliowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. The contract sssels are
grouped with trade receivables for imparment assessment because they have
substantially the same risk charactaristics as the trade receivables for the same
types of contracts. The Group develops the expected loss rates based on the
paymant profiles of past sales and the corresponding historical credit losses, and
adjusts for qualtative and quanttative reasonable and supportable
forward-4ooking information. If the expectation i different from the estimation,
such diffarence wil impact the carrying values of trade receivables and contract
assels,

(b)  Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets e recognised for & deductible temperary differences and
unused iax losses to the extent that & is probable that future taxable profits would
be avalable against which the deductible temporary differencas ant unused tax
loeses could be utlised. Management judgemant is required o determine the
amourt of deferred tax assets that can be recogrisad, baaed on the assessment
of the probability of the future taxable profits.

(e) Revenue Recognition for Services Contracts

The Group recognises services revanue by reference 1o the construction progress
using tha input methad, determined based on the proportion of construction costs
Incurred for work perdormed to date over the estimated tolal construction costs.
The total estimated cosls are based on approved budgets, which require
agsassment and judgement fo be made on changes in, for example, work scope,
changes in coets and costs to completion. In making the Judgement, management
ralias on past experience and the work of specialists,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{lncorparated in Malaysia)
Registation No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
41 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

(d) impairment of Property and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

The Group datermines whether an flem of its property and egquipment end

-use gaseis are mpaired by evalualing the extent to which the recoverable
amount of the asset i less than (IS carrying amount. This evaluation is subject to
changes such @s market performance, ecenomic and political situation of the
W.Amwdmmdsisuwwummmemmamemh
as valusation reports and discounted cash flows.

Crificaf Judgements Made in Applying Accaunting Policies

Mmoamwmmuﬁnmnmlmasmdappiuaﬁmdmmmmm
applying the Group's acoaunting policies which wil have a significant effect on the amounts
recegrisad in the financial statements.

42 BAS|S OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial staterments include the financial statements of the Campany
ard its subgidiaries made up to the end of the reporting period

Subsidiaries are entities controlied by the Group. The Group conirals an enfiy when the
Group i exposed 1o, of has rights 1o, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power aver the eatily. Potantial voling
rights are consiklered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The
Group also considers it has de facto power over an investes when, despile not having the
miasjority of voting rights, it has the current ability 1o direct the activities of the investee that
significantly affect the investee's return.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up
1o the effective date on which conirol ceases, as appropriate.

Infragroup transactions, balances, Income and expanses are eiminated on consolidation.
mmmummmwﬁmmmmmmmmmww
financial stalements. Where necassary, adustments are made to the fnancial statements of
subsidiaries 10 ensura consistency of accounting polickas with those of the Group.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(ncorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
42 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTD)
(a) Business Combinations

Acquisiions of businesses are accounted for using the scquisition methed. Under the
scquisition method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidlary Is the
fak vaiue of the assets transferred, labilitlas incurred and the equity interests issued
wuewpaummmm.mmmmdmmmw
value of any assel o liablity resulting from a confingent conskleration arangemant.
Acquisition-relsted costs, other than the costs to issue debt or eqully securities, ae
recogrised In profit or loss when incurred.

mamwmmmm.mwﬂywdmwmw
acquirea are remeasured o fair value at the acquisition date and any comesponcing
gain or loss Is recognised in profit or loss,

Non-controling interests n the acquires may be infally measured either at fair vaue
or al the non-controling Imerests’ proportionate share of the far value of the
wb’smmmmhdeW.MMd
measurement basls 15 mado on a transaction-Dy-ransachion basis.

(b) Non-controlling Interosts

Non-controling Interests are prasented within aquity in the consoldated statement of
financial posion, separately from the equily attributabie to owners of the Company,
Proft or loes and each companent of other comprehensive income are attributed ©
the owners of the Company and o the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income s atwibuied to norecontroling interests even ¥ this results in the
ran-coalrellng interests having a deficit balance.

(e) Changes in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries Without Change of Control

All chainges in the parent’s cwnership interest in a subsidiary that do not resultin a
loss of control are socounted for as equity fransactions. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of
consideration paid or received is recagnisad directly in equity of the Group.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 {1096418 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
4.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION {(CONT'D)
(d)  Loss of Control

Ugpon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain of 1085 on
dispasal in profit of loss which is calcufated as the diference betwaen -

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
vale of any retaned interest in the former subsidiary; and

(#) the previous camying amourt of the assets (Including goodwill), and liabilties
of the former subsidiary and any noa-controfing inferests.

Amounts previcusly recognisad in other comprehensive income 0 relation fo the
former subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner a5 would be required ¥ the
rolovant assets or lahiites were dsposed of (Le. reciassified %o profit or loss of
transferred diractly 1o retained profits), The fair value of any investments relaned in
the former subsidiary at the date when control s fost Is rogarded as the fair value on
inttial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 8 or, when spplicable, the
cast on initial recognilion of an Irvestment in an associate or & joint verture,

43 FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES
(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

The individual financial statements of each antity in the Group are presentod in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which
i the functional currency.

The consclidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into M@ respective functional
currences on Intial recognition, using exchange rates at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and labilies &t the and of the reporting period are transiated at the
mxchange rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary sssets and liabilities are
iransiated using exchange rates that exsted when the values were determined. All
exchange differences sre recognised n profil or loss,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incamerated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 {1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
43 FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIEES (CONT'D)

{c) Foreign Operations

Assets and llablites of foraign operations (nduding any goodwil and far viaue
adustments arsing on acguisBion) are translsted ¥ the Group's presentation
currency al the exchanpe rates at the end of the reporting period. Income, expenses
and other comprehensive income of foreign operations are translated at exchange
rales at the dates of the transactions. Al exchange differences arising from
trarglation e taken direclly lo cther comprehensive ncome and accumulated in
aquily, altribuled to the owners of the Compary a@nd non-controlling Interests, as
appropriate,

Goodwdl and fair value adjusiments arising from the acquisition of forsign operations
are Ireated as assets and llablitles of the foreign cperations and are recorded in the
functional currency of the foreign aperdticns and translated at the closing rate at the
end of the repocting period.

On the disposal of a foraign operation {i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interes? in
& foreign subsidiary, or & partial deposal Fvolving loss of control over & subsldary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposa of an interest n an assodisle
that Includes a foreign oparation of which the retained inferest becomes a financial
aszal), all of the exchange differences accumuiated in equily in respect of that fareign
operation atvibutable 1o the owners of the Company are redassified 1o profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss an dsposal. The portion that related to non-contralling
intarests is derecognised but is not reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in refation to a partial deposal of 8 subskliary that does not result in the
Group losing confrol over the subsidiary, the proporfionate share of accumulaled
exchange differences are restirbuted % non-controlling interests and aro not
recogrised in profit or loss, When the Group disposes of only part of fis investment in
an associate that incudes a forsign operation while retaining sicnificant influencs, the
praportionate share of the accumulative exchange diferences & reclassified o profit
of loss.

In the consofdated financial statements, whan sottlement of an intragroup loan is
neither plannad nor lcely to acour in the foreseasable future, the axchange differences
ansing from translating such monetary tem are consilered fo form part of @ net
frvestment in the foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensie
Income.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incarperated in Malaysia)
Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
a4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial kabilties are recognised in the statements of financial posilion
when the Group has become a party to the contractual provisiens of the Instruments.

Financial Instruments are classBed as financial assets, financial Rabiites or equty
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their
delinions 1 MERS 132 Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financlal
instrument classifiad as a llability are reported as an expense or income, Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly 1o equity.

Financial Instruments are offset when the Group has 8 lagally enforceable right to offset
and intends to setlle either on @ net basls or 1o realise the assel and settie the Eability
simultaneously

A financial Instrument Is recognised inltially at Rs fair value {other than trade recelvables
without significant financing component which are measwed st transaction prce &
defined In MFRS 18 - Revenue from Conlrécts with Customers at inception). Transacton
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiion or Issue of the financial instrument
(other than a financil instrument at fair value through profit o loss) are added to/deducted
from the far value on inltial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial
instrument at fair value through prof or loss are recognised immediately in pofit or loss.

Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are discdosed in
the individual polkcy statement associated with sach item,

(a) Financial Assets
Al recopnised financial assets sre measured subsequently in their enlirely at

either amartised cost or falr value (through prof or loss, or other comprehensive
Income), depending on the dassification of the financial assets.

Page 27

188



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{incorporated n Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1066418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTD)
(a) Financial Assets (Cont'd)
Debt Instrumsnts
(M Amodised Cost

The financlal asse! is hald for colection of contractual cash fows whare
those cash fows represent solely payments of principal and Interest. Interest
Income s recognised by apglying the effeciva Interest rate to the groes
camying amourt of the financial asset. When the asset has subsequardy
became cradit-impaked, the interest income is recognised by applying the
effective inleresat rate 1o the amortised cost of the financial asset.

The effective inlerast mathod is a method of caleulating the smortsed cast of
a financial asset and of alocating inlerast income aver the relevant period.
mmnmmmunnmmawmammmmm

(W) Fair Value through Other Compeahansive Income

The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial asset, where the assel's cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and nierest. Movements in the carrying amoun ane
taken through other comprehansie income and accumulated in the far
value reserve, excepl for the recognition of impairment, intarest income and
foreign exchange difference which are recognised directly in proft or loss.
Imecest income is calculated uvsing the effective interest rate method.

(18) Fair Value through Profil or Loss

The Group reciassifies debt Instrumants when and only when (s business model
for managing those assels change.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated In Malysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
(B) Financial Liabilities
( Financial Liabilitles at Fair Value through Prafit or Loss

Far vakie through profil or loss category comprises financial fabliities that
are elher held for trading or are designated 1o eliminate or significantly
reduce & measurement or recognition inconsistency that would ofherwise
wige. The changes i fair value of these fnanclal liablities are recognised in
profit or oss.

(i) Other Financial Liabilities

Othar financial kabiltes are subsequently measured at smortised cost using
the effeciive nterest mothod.

The effective interest method is @ methed of calcuiating the amertised cost of
a financial liabilty and of aliocating Interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective intarest rate is the rale tat exactly discounts estmated fulure
cash payments (ncuding all fess and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the offective inlecest rale, transaction costs and other
premiums or dscounts), through the expected ife of the financial Iablity or a
shorier period (where aporopriate),

(c) Equity Instruments

Equity instruments classified as equity are measured initially at cost and are not
remeasured subsequently.

Ordinary shares sre classified as equity and recorded al the proceeds received,
net of drectly attributable transaction costs.

Mcmwommsmammwaﬁawmmnmmh
appropriation.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN., BHD.

n Malays@a)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
(d) Derecognition

A financial sssat or part of 1t is derocogrised when, and onfy when, the contrectusl
rights 1o the cash flows from the financial asset expire or when I Vansfers e
financial assel and substantially 2 the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o
another enlity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured a amortized cost, the
dfference between the caming amount of the asset and the sum of te
conskleration received and receivable Is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of @ debt instrument classified as far vale through ofher
comprehensive income. the cumulative gain or loss previously accumwlated in the
fair value reserve is reclassified from equity to profit of loss. In contrast, there is no
subsequent roclassification of the fair value reserve to praf® of loss folioaing the
derecognition of an equity investment.

A finangial liabiity or a part of it Is derecognsed when, and only whan, the obligation
specified in the contract is dischanged or cancalled or axpires. On derecogniion of a
fmancial Sability, the differance between the carrying amount of the financial kabiity
axtinguished or fransferred to another party and the consideration paid, Induding ary
non-cash assets vansfered or liablities assumed, is recogrised in profit ar loss.

(a) Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is @ conlract that requires the issuer to make
spacfied payments to reimburse the hoider for a loss it incurs because & spacific
debtor fads to make payment when due in accordance with the origingl or modified
terms of a dedt instrument,

Financial guaranice conkracts are recognised Initialy as lisbistes st {air value, net
of fransaction coats, Subseguent to initial recognition, financial

contrects are recognised as income in profit or loss over the pencd of the
guarantoe or, when there s no specific contractual period, recognised in profit ar
loss upon discharge of the guarantee. If the debtor fails to make payment refating
to a financial guaraniee contract when & is due and the Group, as the issuer, Is
requirad 1o reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liabiity & measured
at the higher of the amount of the credit loss determined In aocordance with the
expected credit loss model and the amount nitially recognised fess cumulative
amortisaton,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorparatad In Malaysa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
45  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investiments In subsidieries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the
Compary, and are reviewed for imparment at the end of the reporting period if events or
changes In crcumstances indicate that the camying values may not be recoverable. The
cost of the nvestments includes transaction costs.

On the disposal of the investments in subsidianes, the difference between the net disposal
proceads and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or 08s,

46  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

AN items of propesty equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost Includes expandiure hat
mdMMNchWdNMWWmBMMWb
bringing the asse! 1o working condition for its infended use.

Subsequent to iniial recognition, all propeny and equipment are sialed at cost less
sccumulated deprociation and any imparment losses.

Subsequant costs are ncluded in {he assel's carmying amount or recognised as a separaie

asset, as appropriate, only whan the cost is incurred and & is probable that the fulure
economic benefits associated with the asset will faw to the Group and the cost of the asset

used for this purpose are:-

Bulding %
Advertising signboard 20%
Computer and equipment 20%
Furniture and fitlings 20%
Motor vehcles 20%
Office equpmeant 20%
Renavation 20%
Tools and agquipment 20%

The depreciation methed, uselul fves and residual values are reviewed, and adusted ¢
appropriate, at the end of each reporing penod to ensure that the amounts, method and
periods of deprociation are consstent with pravicus estimates and the expected pattem of
consumption of the future economic berwfits embedied in the items of the property and
equipmenl. Any changes are accounied for as a change In estimate.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incarporated in Mataysia)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 {1086419- X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
46  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD)

When signfficant parts of an ftem of property and equipment have different Lselul lives,
they are accounted for as separale items (major components) of property and eguipment.

An em of propedy end equipment (s darccognised upon dispossl or whan no future
aconomic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or kss arising from derecognition of
the assel, beng the dilference between the net disposal proceods 2nd the carmying amount, s
recognised in prafit or loss,

4.7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Research and Development Expenditure
Research expandiure is racognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Development expenditure (s recognised as an expense except that costs Incurred on
development projcts are caplialised as non-current assets 1o the axtant that such
expendiure Is expocted fo generate future economic banefits. Development
expendilure & capitalised #, and only #, an erty can demonsirale af of the
foliowing-

() Its abilty to measure reliably the expanditure attributable to the assal under
developmant,

() the product or process = technicaly and commercially feasible;

(i¥) its fudure economic benefits are probable;

(v) 3 Intention 1o complete and the ability to use or sel the developed assel
amd

v) tha availabiity of adeguate technical, financial and other resources (o
compiate the asset under development,

Capialsed developmen! expenditure s measured at cos! less soccumulated
amoriisation and impsirment losses, ¥ any. Development expendilure infialy
recogrised as an expense i not recognsed as assets in the subsequent period.

The development expanditure is amortised on @ straight-ine methed over a perod of
10 years when the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected
fulre economic benefits are o longer probable of being recovered, he
davelopment expenditurs is written down 10 Its recovarable amourt,

The amortisation method, usefud life and resiklusal valua are reviewed, and adjusted I
appropriata, at the end of each reporting period.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Mataysis)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
47  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTD)
(b) Other Intangible Assets

Palents and trademarks and business goodwil which have indefinite useful live
are not amortised, Al the end of each reporting period, the useful lives of the
trand names are reviewed to determine whether events and crournslances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the assels. Such
assels are tasted for Impairment annually and whenever there is an indication of
that they may be impaired.

Other intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which
has finite useful lives, are measured at cost less any accumulated amoriisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets are smortised on a straightline mathod over their
estimated usaful lives from the date they are avafable for use, The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are:-

Trace secrets and Know-how 10 years

In the avant that the expacied fulre economic benefils are no longar probable of
being recovered, the othar intangible assets are writen down to its recoversbie
amount.

The amordisation methed and useful Iffe and residual value are reviewed, and
adjusted if sppeopriate at the end of each reporting penod.

48  LEASES

The Group assesses whather a contract Is or conlains 8 lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Group recognises a right-ol-use asset and comesponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arangemaents in which 1t is the lessee, except for low-value assets and
short-term Joases with 12 months or less. For these leases, the Group recognises the leasa
Wmmopuﬂmmmnmmnnmwmmmdmm
uniass another systematic basis is moce representative of the lime patiemn in which economic
benefits from the leased assels are consumed

TheGmpmcogﬁseaammmmdmdamolwnyaulmmnm
date. The right-of-use assels and the associated lease liabilies are presanted as a separale
line item in the statament of financial pasition,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Mataysia)
Regestration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
48  LEASES (CONTD)

The rght-af-use asset & initially measured at cost. Cost incudes the initiel amount of the
comasponding lease liablity adjusted for any lease payments made &l or before the
commencement date, plus sny initlal direct costs incurred, less any incentives received.

The right-cf-use asset & subsscuently measured at cost less accumclated depreciasion snd
wmmmulmmdwwhrwmmmdﬂnmwny.m
degreciation starls from the commencement date of the lease. If the lease ‘ansfers
ownership of the underlying assat to the Comparny or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expecis to sxarcise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the
ﬂyu-of-usemwhwmotmmdmm&dh@tdmmmahem
of the lease tarm. The astimated wseful fves of the right-of-use assets are detarmined on the
same basis as those aqupment,

The lease liability s initially measwed at the present value of the lease payments that ane not
paid at the commencament date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If Ihs rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremantal bomowing rate.

The lease Kabiliy is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest
meathod. 1t is remeasured whan there is a change i the future lease payments {other than
lease modification that is not accountad for as a separate lease) with the comesponding
adjustment s made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset o |s recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount has been reduced to 2ero,

49 INVENTORIES

Irventories are stated at the lower of cost and net resfisable vafue. Cost is determined on the
first-n, first-out basis method and comprises the purchase price and incklentals incurred 0
bringing the invenioris to ther present location and condition,

Net rogisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

410 CONTRACT ASSET AND CONTRACT LIABILITY

A contract asset is recognised when the Group's right to consideration is conditional on
something other than the passage of time. A contract asset Is subject fo imparment
requirements of MFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.

A contract liabiity is stated st cost and represents the obligation of the Groug 1o transfer
goods oe services 10 8 cusiomer for which consideration has been received (or the amount
Is due) from the customers.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated m Makysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
411 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposis,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertibla to knawn amounits of
cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value with original
maturity periods of three months or less. For the purpose of Ihe statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafls.

412 WMPAIRMENT
(a) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognises a loss aliowancs for expected credit losses on investmeants in
delt Instruments that are measured at amodised cost or at fair value through olhet
comprehansive income, tade receivabies and contract assels.

The expectod cradt loss 5 estimated as the difference batween all contrachssl cash
fiows thal are due 1o the Group i accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects 1o receive, discounted 8t the onginal effective nlerest rate.

The amount of expected credit losses & updated at each reporting date 1o reflect
changes in credi risk sinca Initial recognition of the respeciive financial instrument,
The Group alays recognises elime expecied credt losses for frade receivables
and contract assets using the simpliied approach. The expecied credt losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision malrix based on the Group's
hietorical credt oss experence and are adjusted for forward-ooking informastion
{(ncluding time value of money where appropriate).

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises Iifetime expacted credit
losses when there has been a significant ncrease n credd risk since initial
recognition, Howeer, if the credil risk on the financial instrurment has nat incressed
significantly sinca inkiaf recogrition, the Group measures Ihe loss allowance for that
financial inatrument at sn amount aqual o 12-month expecled cradit sses.

The Group recognises an impairment gain o loss n profit or loss for all financisl
instrurnents with a corresgonding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
alowance account. except for nvestments in debt insruments that are measwed at
fair value through other comprehensive Income, for which the ks allowance s
recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulied in the fak vale
reserve, and does not reduce the camying amount ¢f the financial asset in the
staternents of financial position.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorparated in Mafaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
412  IMPAIRMENT (CONTD)
(o) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying values of assets, ofhar than those to which MFRS 136 - Impairment of
Assets does not apply. are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for
impsirment whan an annual impairment assessment s compuisory of there is an
indication that the assets might ba impaired. Impairment & measured by comparing
the carmying values of Ihe assals with their recoverable amounts. When the camying
amount of an asset exceeds s racoverable amount, the asset is written down (o ils
recovarable amount and an impairment loss shal be recognised, The recoverable
amount of an asset & Me higher of the assel’s fair value less costs to sell and &s
vake in use, which Is measured by reference lo discounted future cash fows using &
pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current marke! assessments of the Sme value of
maney and the risks specific to the assel. Where it s not possibie to estimate the
recoverable amount of an ndiidual asset, the Group delermines e recoverable
amount of the cash-gancrating unit 1o which the ssset belongs,

An impairment loss i recognised in profit or loss immediately uniess the asset is
carried at #s revalued amount, Any impairment oss of 8 revalued asset is treated
as @ rovaluation decrease 1o the extent of a previously recognised revaluation
surplus for the same assel. Any impairment loss recognised In respect of a
cash-generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill afocated to the cash-generating unit and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other asgels in the cash-generating unkt on a pro rata basis,

In respect of assets other than goodwil, and when there Is a change in e
estimates used to determing the recoverable amount, a subsequent Increase n
the recoverable amount of an asset Is treated as o reversal of the previous
impairment loss and /s racognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the
asset that would have been determined (net of amormsation and depreciation) had
na imparment loss been racognised, The reversal i recognised in profit or loss
Immediately, unless the asset is carmed & ils revalued smount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase,

4.13 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a resull of past events, when # is probable that an cutflow of resources embadying
aconomic banefits wil be required 1o settie the obligation, and when a refiable estimate of
the amount can be made. Pravisions are reviewed at the end of each reporiing period and
adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
ls matedal, the provision is the present value of the eslimated expenditure raquired to
settle the obligation. The discount rate shall be a pre-tax rate that reflects currant market
assessmanis of the time value of money and the risks spacfic to the labity, The
unwinding of the discounl & recognised as nterast expense in profit or logs.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated i Makaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
414 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries, pakd annual leave and boruses are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are recognised n profit or joss i the paried In which the assocaled
services are renderad by employees of the Group

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

The Group's contributions to defined contribution plang are recognised in profit or
I055 In the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have boen paid, the
Group has no further Sabidity in respect of the defined conlribation plane.

415 INCOME TAXES
(a) Current Tax

Current tix assets and liabilities are expected amount of mcome tax recoverable o
payable to the taxation authorities.

Current laxes &re measwed using tax rates and tax laws thal have been enactec
or substantively enacted at the end of the reparting period and are recognised in
profit or 1055 excapt to the extent that the tax relates o itams recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive Income or directly in equily).

(b) Deferred Tax

Defarred tax is recognised using the liability method for all fem parary differences other
than those that arise from goodwill or from the indssl recognition of an ssset or fiablity
n a transaction wiich is not 2 business combination and at the time of the fransaction,
afecis neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Daferred tax assets and liabilties are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o
apply in the perod when the asset is realised or the liabilty is settied, based on the tax
rates that have bean enscted or substantively enacled at the end of the raporting
periad,

Defacred tax assets are recognised for all geductibie lemporary differences, urused
1ax losses and unused tax credits (o the extent that & & probable that future taxable
profils will be avaiable against which the deductible temporary diferences, unuged tax
Yosses and unused tax credits can be utiised. The carrying amounts of defered tax
assets are reviewad st the end of each reporting period and reduced to the axtent that
it is no langer probable (hal the related tax benafits wil be realised.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN., BHD,
{incorporated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (10296419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
435 INCOME TAXES (CONTD)

Current and defesred tax tems are recegnised In comelation o he underying transactions
sither in profit or loss, alhar comarehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax arising
from a business combiration s adiusted against gaodwill or negative goodwil.

Currant tax assels and liablities or deferred tax assets and kabiiies are offsel when there is a
legaly enforcaable right 10 set off current tax assets aganst curent tax kabilties and when
the deferred taxes relate to the same taable entity (or on diferent tax entities but they intend
to setiie currant tax assets and liabities on a net basis) and the same taxation authority.

416  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liabdity |s a possible obligation that arises from past events and whosa
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrenca of one or more uncertain fulure evenis
not whoify within the control of tha Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of econcmic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured refiably.

A contingent liability 's not recognised but is disciosed i the notes to the financial
statements, uniess the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remola. When 8
change 1 the prodabiity of an outfiow occurs so that the outfiow is probable, & will then be

récognised as a provision.

417 BORROWING COSTS

Bomowing costs that are not directly attritvsable to the aoquisiion, construction or preduciion
of & qualifying assat are recognised In profit or loss using the effective interest method,

418  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an &sset or paid to transfer a Sabiiy In
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement dste, regardiess
of whether that price is directly chservable or estimated using a valuation technique. The
measurement assumes thal the lransaction takes place sither in the principal market or in
the absence of a principal markel, In the most advantagecus market. For non-financal
assel, the fair value measurement takes into account 8 market participant’s abiity to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling & to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.18

419

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed inlo level 1ta
Javel 3 as faliows:-

Level 1:  Inputs are quoted prices (unaxdjusted) in active markets for identical assets of
Imbility that the entity can access at the measurement date,

Lewvel 2: Inputs are Inputs, ather than quoled prices. included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liabiity, either directly or ingirecily; and

Lewvel 3: Inputs are unobservable Nputs for the asset or Eabdity.

The wransfer of fair value betwesn levels is determined as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer,

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue from contracts with cusiomers is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with 8 customer In exchange for transferring goods o sarvices 10 8 customer
net of sales and senicn tax, retumns, rebates and discounts, The Group recognises
revenue when (or as) it iransfers control over a product or sendce 10 customer. An assal is
transforred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the assel. Depending on the
substance of the contracl, revenue Is recognised when the parformance obligation &=
satishied, which may be at a paind in lime o over time,

(a) Rendering of Platform Intrusion Safety Services

Revenue from sanices ig recognisad over time in the period in which the services
are rendered using the Input method, determined based the proportion of costs
incurred for work perfoemed to date over the estimated total costs. Transaction price
& computed based on the price spacified in the contract and acusted for any
varishle corsideration such as Incentives and penafes. Pas! experienca ig used o
estimate and provide for the variable consideration, using most likely method and
revenue is only recognised 10 the extant that It & highly probable that a significant
reversal wil not occur.

A receivabio is recognsed when the sarvices ara rendered as fis is the paint in time
hat the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time |s required
pafore the paymant is due. If the services randered excead the amount invoiced, 2
contract assed is recognised. If the amount Involced exceeds the services renderad, 8

contract liabilty is recognised.
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AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in

Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTD)

419

420

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Rendering Anclllary Services of Platform intrusion Safety

Revenue Is recognised al a peint in ime when the services have been renderad lo
the cusfomers and colhckdes with the delivery of servicas and scceplance by
CUSICMErs.

Rendering of Technical Assistance

Revenue from providing technical assistance s recognised over trne in the period In
which the senvices are rerdered esing the input method, detarmined by reference to
the tabour days incurred for work performed fodate as a percentage of the estimated
lotsl kabour days. Past experence is used o estimate and provide for the varable
consideration, using most Tkely method and revenue is only resegnised to the axtent
that it is highly probabie that a significant reversal wil not occur.

A receivable is recognised when the senvices are rendered s tis Is the point in tme
that the consideralion i& unconditional because only the passage of tme |s required
before the payment is due I the services rendered excaed the amount invoiced, a
contract asset is recognised. If the amount Involoed exceeds the services randered, a
caniract Kability is recognised,

Licence Fee

Ravenue for licance fees s recognsed on a straight-ine basts ovar the langth of the
licensing contract,

Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognised at a point In time when the goods have been dalivered to
the customer and upon &5 acceplance, and It i probable that the Company will
collect the considerations to which & wouki be entitled to in exchange for the

goods sold,

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on an accrug basis using the effective interast method,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incomporated in Malaysa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
2022 2021
RM RM
Unquoted shares:-
At cost 2,243,632 2,243,632
Lags: Accumulated impairment losses (243 632) (243.632)“
2,000,000 2,000,000
The detalls of the subsidianes are as folows:-
Principal Flace
of Busness/  Percentage of Issued
Couniry of Share Capital Held
Narne of Subsidiary Incorporation by Parent Princpal Activities
2022 2021
% %
AZT| Engineering (M) Malaysia 100 100 Tumkey engineering desigring,
Sdn, Bhd. Integrating. installation, lesting,
commissioning, project
managemert, markaling anc
procurement, enginaering services
for the rail industry,
Alpha ZaiconTechnology  British 100 100 Intellectual property licensing.
Intematicanal Inc. * Columbia
Note:-
A . The financia) stadements of Alpha Zaicon Technology Intemational Ing. are unauditad as

Business Covporations Acf doas nof require the accounts fo be audited,
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporaled in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

AL Impairment Dapreciation AL
1.10.2021 Addtions Losses Charges 3092022
M M RM RM RM
The Group
2022
Cavrying Amoun!
Freehold land - 5,722,169 - - 5,722,169
Bullding - 1,196,453 - (9,970) 1,186,483
Compuler and equipment 19,178 15,449 - (6,704) 27923
Furniture and fittings 178,867 5,500 - (89,433 94,934
Modor velycias 1,167 133,245 - (3,388) 131,024
Office equipment 30,781 6275 - (12.620) 24,427
Renovation 129128 . - (68,066) 61,062
Toois and equipment 2,886 2400 - (2.789) 2,487
362,007 7,081 49 - (182,870) 7,250,519
Al Impairment  Depreciaton Al
1.10.2020 Additions Losses Charges 30.9.2021
RM RM RM RM RM
2021
Carrying Amount
Advestising signbeard 2,374 . (1,002) (1.282) i
Computer and aquipment 37124 26,094 (23,223) (20,B817) 19178
Furnture and fitlings 306,205 55,021 (63,586) {118,773) 178 867
Motor vehicles 20,033 . - (18,868) 1167
Office aquipment 45416 15,012 (12,834) {16,813) 30,781
Renovation 302,566 8,400 (74,534) (107,304) 120,128
Toals and squipment 10,931 . - (8,045) 2,686

724,649 104527 (175260)  (291900) 362,007
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Accumudated
AL Accumulated  Impairment Carrying
Cost Deprediation Losses Arnount
M RM RM RM
The Group
2022
Freehold land 57122169 - - 5722169
Buliding 1,196,453 (9.570) - 1,186 483
Advertising signboard 6,408 (6,318) (1.,0892) -
Computer and equipment 253,557 {202,811) (23,223) 27923
Furniture and fittings 658,088 {499,568) (63,586) 94,934
Motor vehicles 349184 (218,160) - 131,024
Office equipment 177,785 (140,528) (12,834) 24 427
Renovation 540,022 (404,428) (74,534) 61,062
Tools and eguipment 57,245 (54,84E) - 2,497
B.961 415 (1,535,627) (175.268) 7,250,518
2021
Advertising signboard 6,408 (5,316) (1.092) -
Computer ard eguipment 233,508 (196,107) (23.223) 19178
Furnture and ftings 652,563 {410,135) (63.,586) 178,867
Motor vehicles 215939 (214,772) - 1167
Office equipment 171,514 {127.899) (12,834) 30,781
Renovation 540,022 (336,360) (74,534) 129,126
Tools and equipment 54,945 (52,059) - 2,686
1,879.924 (1.342,648) (175,269) 362,007
A Depreciation At
1.10.2021 Addition Charges 3092022
RM RM: RM RM
The Company
2022
Carrying Amount
Computer and
equipmaent - 2,280 {418) 1,862
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
({Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1056418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Al Impairment  Deprecation Al
1.10,2020 Addition Losses Charges 30.9.2021
RM RM RM RM RM
The Company
2021
Carrying Amount
Advertising signboard 2,374 - (1.082) {1.282)
Computer and
equipment 21,847 10,002 (23,223) (8,633) -
Furniture and fittings 93,790 - (63,666) (35,204} .
Office aquipment 20,328 - {12,834) (7,494) .
Renovation 114,472 - (74,534) (39,938) -
25711 10,008 (175,269) (92,551) -
Accumulated
A Accumulsted Impairment Carrying
Cost Depreciation Losses Amount
RM RM RM RM
The Company
2022
Advertising signboard 6,408 (5.316) (1,092) -
Compuler and equipment 56,113 (30.028) (23,223) 1,862
Fumiture and fittings 186,550 {125.964) (63,536) .
Office equipment 45 525 (32,691) (12.834) -
Renovation 199,692 (125,158) (74,534) .
496,288 (318,157) {175.269) 1,862
2021
Advertising signboard 6,408 {5,3186) (1,002} .
Computer and equipment 62,833 (29,610) (23,223) -
Furniture and fittings 189,550 (125,9648) (63,586) -
Office equipment 45525 (32,801) (12,834) -
Renavation 189,692 (125,158) (74,534)

494,008 {318,739) (175,269)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The freehold land and bailding of the Group have been pledged to licensed banks as security for
banking faciifties granted 1o the Group as disclosed n Note 22(b)(ii} to the financial staternents.

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Reassessmam
A of Lease Depreciation At
1.10.2021 Liablities Charges 30.9.2022
RM RM RM RM
The Group
2022
Carrying Amound
Office pramises 348,892 137,482 (337,178) 147,266
Meodification
At of Lease Depraciation Al
1.10.2020 Labiities Charges 30.9.2021
RM RM RM RM
2021
Carrying Amount
Office premises 256,779 430,680 (349 467) 346,962
Reassessment
AL of Leasa Depreciation Al
1102021 Liabilities Charges 30.9.2022
RM RM RM RM
The Company
2022
Carrying Amount
Offica pramises 11,502 137,482 (68,7886) 80,168
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

T. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Al Depreciation
1,10.2020 Chargas
RM RM
The Company
2021
Carrying Amount
Office premises 80,513 (69.011)

30.9.2021

11,502

The Group and the Company have lessed office premises between 18 to 24 (2021 <18 o 24)

months and 24 (2021 - 24) months respectivaly,

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trade
Palents Secrals
and and Business  Develcpment
Trademark  Know-how Goodwil Cost Tosal
RM RM RM RM RM

The Group
Al Cost:-
A11.10.2020 342114 1.710,565 1,348 451 SO01.800  3.522930
Foraign exchange

atjustments 21,108 105,545 84 436 - 211090
At 30.9.2021/1. 102021 383,223 1816110 1,462 887 S01.800 4,134 020
Foraign exchange

adustiments 10,946 54,731 43,785 - 109 452
AL 3092022 374,169 1,670,841 1,496,672 501800 4243482
Accumuated Amortisation:-
At 1,10,2020 - (855.276) - (189,185) (1,044,481}
Foreign axchange

adusiments - (52.772) - - (52.772)
At 30.9.20211,10.2021 - {908.048) . (189,185) (1.0497.233)
Foreign exchangs

adjustments . (27,366) . - (27,365)
At 3092022 - (935 414) - (189.185) (1,124,5639)
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Trade
Palents Secrets
ond and Busness  Development
Tradermark  Know-how Goodwil Cost Tolal
R RM RM RM RM
Tha Group (Cont'd)
Accumulated dmpalment
Losses -
At 1.10.2020 (342,114) (855,2689) (1,388,451) (312615) (2,878,469)
Foreign axchange
adjustmants {21,109) (52,773) (84,438) - (158,314)
At 30.8.2021/1,10.2021 (363,223) (908.082) (1.452,887) (312,615) (3,038,787)
Foreign exchange
adjustmants (10,846) {27 365) (43,785) - (82,056)
Al 30.8.2022 (374,169) (935,427) (1,496.672) (312615) (3,118,383)
Carrying Amaunt
At 30,9.2021 = = 4
Al 30.5.2022 . . - -
Development
Cost
RM
The Company
At Cosl:-
At 2022/2021 501,800
Accumuisted Amortisation:-
Al 202272021 (189,185)
Accumutated Impairment Losses: -
At 202272021 (312615)
Carrying Amount
At 30.9.2021 =
At 30.9.2022 s
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (10064189 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

8, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)

The development cost is in respect of the cost incurred for the development of Platform Intrusion
Emergancy System (*PIES”).

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Defarred tax sssets 826444 927,926 744 000 -
Deferred tax liabiities - (187,238) - .
826,444 760,690 744,000 -

Thedefemdtaxsaseumoogﬁsoduucenddm'ewﬂmwbdandbefofcapprcpdaa

offsetting are as folows:-
Recognised in
A Profil or Logs At
1.10.2021 (Note 28) 30.8.2022
RM RM RM
Tho Group
2022
Deferred tax assels:
- contract kabiities 1,279,940 (635,156) 644,704
- unabsorbed capilal allowances - 8616 8,616
- unused tax osses - 73472 73,472
- excess of depreciation over capital allowsnceas - 17,128 17,128
- temporary difference on services conbract 314,920 (232,482) #2444
1.584 866 (7688,422) 826444
Deferred tax llablites:
« deferred cost (666,940) 666,940 -
- lemporary diffecance on services contrad (167,236) 167,236 .
{834,176) 834176 -
760,690 65,754 826 444
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorperatad in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020332 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

9, DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONT'D)
Recognised in
At Prafit or Loss At
1.10,2020 (Note 28) 30.9.2021
RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Deferred tax assels:
- contract kabiltles - 1,279,940 1,279,940
- lemporary difference oh services contract Nnan 223,755 314,924
aan 1,503,698 1,504 866
Deferred tax liabilities:
- deferred cost - (666,840) (666,340)
- temporary difference on Services contract (476,985) 309,750 (167,236)
{476,986) {(357,190) (834,176)
{385,815) 1,146 505 760,690
Racognised in
At Profit or Loss At
1.10,2021 (Nate 238) 30.9,2022
RM RM RM
The Company
2022
Deterred tax assats:
- contract liabditles - 644,784 644,784
- unabsarbed capital allowances - 8,616 8,616
- unutiised tax losses B 73,472 73472
- excess of depreciation over capital allowances - 17,128 17.128_
- 744 000 744,000
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Noc 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)

Al the &nd of the reporting perod, the amounts of deferred tax assets not recognised (stated a1
gross) due to uncertainty of their realisation are as follows:-

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022
RM RM RM AM
Contract lishiities 6,630,773 8,792,685 - 6,111,610
Defarrad cost (2.686.800) - - .
Impairment lass:
« trade receivables - 577,604 - .
- inventories 74,216 74216 . -
Leass llabdities 83,121 6,801 - 541
Unabsorbed capital
allowances 130,279 . x 3
Unused tax losses:
« expires in year of
assessment 2032 5,640,137 - . -
Accelerated of captal
allowances over
depreciation (57 .462) - - -
Excess of depreciation
over capifal allowances - 114,804 - 105,024
0,623 484 9,566,120 . 6217175

No defarred tax gssets are recognised in respect of these items as # is not probable that future
taxable profits of a subsidiary wil be available against which the deductibie temparary differences
can be utlised,

The unused tax losses are aslowed to be utlised for 10 consecutive years of assessment
immediately following that year of assessmaent, whereas, the unabsorbed capital allowances are
allowed to be carmied forward Indefinitely.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(ncorporated in Mafaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1088418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

10.  INVENTORIES

The Group
2022 201
RM RM
Spare paris E
Recognised in profit or loss:-
Inventories written down - 74216
1. TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Trade receivables 406,834 3,405,361
Allowance for impairment lossas -
At 1 October 2021/2020 - (481,250)
Wreback during the financial year (Note 26) - 481,250

At 30 Saptember - ¥

The Group's normal credt tarms ranging from 30 to 101 (2021 - 30 to 101) days. Other credit terms
are assessad and approved on a case-by-case basis.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated n Malaysia)
Reglstration No- 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
R RM RM RM
Other receivabies - 475,443 -
Alowance for impalment
losses - (401,812) - .
- 73,636 . -
Goods and services tax
recevable 5432 4,240 5 2
Deposits 271,036 480,756 18,500 19,500
Prepayments 339,472 164,299 43182 23,362
616,940 722,831 62662 42,862
Allowance for
imparment losses -
Al 1 Octobar 2021/2020 (401,612) (401,812) . -
Written off during the
linancial year 401,812 - - -
AL 30 September > (401,812) = =

jn the pravious financial year, included in deposits of the Group &= an amount of RM332,500 redatec
to depasits paid for the purchase of a properly as disclosed in Note 35 to the fnancial statements,
The deposi has been set off against the purchase price of the Group's property and equipment in
the current financial year,

13. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Contract Assets
Contract assets refating
1o sarvice contracis . 119,216 - 3,845 568
Contract Liabilities
Contract labllities
relating to service
contracts (6,974 280) (9,326,362) (2,686,589) (6,111,610)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. EBHD.

(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

13.

CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONT'D)

()

(b)

(€

(d)

hthﬁmm.mmmammmmqumup'sm
Cormpany's right 1o conskderation for services renderad completed on service contracts but not
ydbiiedasumampaﬂngm..TMamrdeeumdmlni year,

The contract liabilties primarlly relate to advance biling to a customer for the rendering of
sanices of which the revenue will be recognised over tha remaning conlract term of the
specific contract it refates to within 2 (2021 - 3) years.

The changes fo conlract assat and condract liability balances during e financial year are
summarnsad balow:-

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM

At 1 October 2021/2020  (9,207,148) 2.746,400 (2,266,052) 3,105,222
Revenue recognised

in peofit or loss during

the financial year 8427289 5431 484 4,679,154 2,009,738
Billings 10 customers

during the financial

yeor (6,194,432)  (17,385,030)  (5.099,701) (7.381,012)
At 30 September (6,974,280) {9,207,146) (2,686,599) (2.266,062)
Reprasented by;-

Contract assels - 119,216 - 3,845,558
Contract liabilities (6,974 ,289) 9,326,362) (2,688 599) {6,111,610)

(6,974 .209) (9,207.946)  (2,686,509) {2,266,052)

The folowing 1able summarises cortract price afocated W unsatisfied performance obligations
rasulting from contracts with customers:-

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM M RM
Services conracts with
remaining contract
periods 19,290,760 27,718,078 5829711 10,291,219

The Group and the Company will recogniee this revenue when the performance obligation =
completad, which is axpactad to occwr within 1 o 2 (2021 - 1 1o 3) years,
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1066419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

14. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Amount owing by:-
Trade balance

Non-trade balance
Allawance for impalmment losses

Afowance for impairment losses:-
At 1 October 2021/2020

Addition during the financial year (Note 26)

Foreign exchange dffarence
At 30 September

Amount owing to:-
Trade bakanca

The Company
2022 2021
RM RM
2,403,163 2461
7,249,463 6,505,170
(7,249 463) (6,590,330)
. 4,840
2,403,163 7.301
(6,560,330) (6,405,468)
(9,961) (14,719)
(649,172) (76.143)
(7,249,463) (8,590,330)
{168,545) (173,588)

(a) The trade balances are subject fo the normal rade credit terms of 80 (2021 - 60) days. The

amounts owing are (o be setlled in cash.

{v) The non-trade balances are unsecured, iMerestfree and repayable on demand, The

amounts owing are to be setled in cash.

15. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Money market funds, at fak value

The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
26,208 5925776
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER

2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

16.  FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

Fixed deposits with licensed banks:
- pledged

Effective interes! rate per anmum (3%)
Maturity periods (months)

17. SHARE CAPITAL

The Group(The Company
022

2022 2021
Number Of Shares
Issued and Fully Paid-Up
Ordinary Shares 2000000 2,000,000

3,986,272

13010185
1012

2,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dwidends as and when declared by the
Company, and are entifed to one vote per share at the members’ genersd meetngs of the

Company. The ordinary shares have no par value,

18. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign exchange transiation resenve srose from the transiation of the financial statements of &
foreign subsidiary whose functional currency = different from the Group's presentalion currency.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096318 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

19. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2021
RM RM RM RM
Non.oyrrent
Other payable = 120,141 .
Current
Other payables 133,567 196,276 2,210 965
Accruals 408,354 506814 145443 152,985
541,921 703.090 147,653 153,950
Inchuded in current and non-current other payables of the Group is gratulty payment payable lo a
former employea amounted to RM120,141 (2021 - RM186,648) and Nil (2021 - RM120,141)
respectively, The gratuity payment |e split into 26 tranches and fo be settied in June 2023,
20. LEASE LIABILITIES
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
At 1 October 2021/2020 350,811 an.2n 12,043 83412
COVID-19velated rent
CONCAESI0NS
(Notes 27 and 29(b)):
- principal (1,800) (34.412) {1,890) (14,279)
- interes] expense (60) (2,648) (80) (671)
Changas due to
resssassment of leass
term (Note 2%(b)) 137,482 - 137,482 -
Changes due to lease
modification (Note 29(b)) - 413,148 -
Interest axpense
recognésed in profit or
loss (Note 27) 29,183 32,935 11,887 6,631
Repayment of principal (332,527) (295,202) (64,223) {87,080)
Repayment of interest
aXpansa (29,123) {30.287) (11,827) {5.960)
A1 30 September 153,876 350,811 83,412 12,043
Page 56
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
({Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

20. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

The Group The Company
2022 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Analysed by:-
Current liabilities 141,833 280,347 71,369 12,043
Non-current liabditas 12.043 70,464 12,043 -
153,878 350,811 83412 12,043
21. BORROWINGS
The Group
2022 2021
RM M
Non-current
Tern loans (Note 22) 5520117 702,811
Hire purchase payables (Note 23) 93,231 .
6,013,348 702,811
Current
Term loans (Note 22) 372,770 157,392
Hire purchase payables (Note 23) 18,769 2582
382,539 160,374
6,405,837 863,185
22. TERM LOANS
The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Current liabilities (Note 21) 3r2.rmo 157,392
Non-current llablities {Nota 21) 5920.117 702811
6,202 367 860,203
Page §7
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporatad in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

22. TERMLOANS (CONT'D)

{a) The interest rate profie of the term loans are summansed below:-

Effeciive
Interest Rate
2022 2021
% 5%

Fl
- Term loan | 720 870
« Term loan Nl 375 -
Flxed rate torm loan
« Term loan il 3.00 3.00

(b) The term loans were secured by:-
(h Toem loan |

The Group

2022 2021

RM RM
3608156 414 880

5561507 -
5942322 414,880
350,565 445323
6,282,887 860,203

. a joint and several guarantee of RM2.000,000 of a director of the

subsicary,

. a corporate guarantee of RM2,000,000 of the Company, and

. a 70% guarantee covered by the Government of Malaysia/Syariat
Jaminan Pembisysan Pernlagsan Berhad (*SJPP") under the Working
Capital Guarantee Scheme for RM1,225,338.

n Yerm loan Il

. a jont and several guarantee of RMS500,000 of a director of the subsidiary;

. a corparate guarantee of RM500,000 of the Company; and

. a guarantee coverage of up to B0% by SJPP
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorgorated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

22. TERM LOANS (CONT'D)
(b) The term loans wore secured by (Cont'd)-
iy Term foan

. property and eguipment of the Group as disclsed in Note 6 1o the
financial stalements,

. a personal guarantee of RM5,652,500 by a director of the subsidiary; and
. a corporate guarantee of RMS,652.500 by the Company.

23. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES

The Group

2022 2021

RM RM
Minimum hire purchase payments;
-not later than 1 year 26,478 3,000
« later than 1 year and not laler then 5 years 106,128 -

132,806 3,000
Lesy: Future finance charges (19.,806) (18)
Present value of hire purchase payabies 113,000 2,882
Analysed by:-
Current liabilities (Note 21) 18,769 2982
Non-current iabiities (Note 21) 93,23 .

113,000 2882

The hire purchase paysbles bore effective interest rates of 6.48% (2021 - 5.26%) per snnum al the
and of the reporting period.

24. TRADE PAYABLES
The narmal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranging from 14 to 60 (2021 - 14 to 60) days.
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
({Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No; 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

25.

26.

REVENUE
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RAM RM
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
Recognised over time
Senvices 8,427,289 5431484 . -
Licensing fee - . 4,034 684 349 565
Technical assistance . - £44,270 1,660,173
Projact income . - - .
8,427,289 5431484 4,679,154 2,008,738
R { o ik |
time
Sales of goods - 55,500 . -
Services . 450,000 - -
- 505,500 . -
8,427,289 5,936,084 4679164 2,000,738

(WRITEBACK OF)/IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Impasrment ksses!
- amount owing by
subsicdlarias (Note 14) - - 8,961 14,719
Writeback of sllowance for
Impairm ant losses:
- trade recenables
{Note 11) . (481,250) . -
(481,250) 9.961 14,719

Page &0
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.

(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27,

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Lose)Prolit bedors taxation
is arrived at after charging/
(crediting ).~

Auditers' remunaration
COVID-18-related rent
concessions:
« for the financial year
(Nates 20 and 29(b))
- In the previous financial

year

Deprecation:

- property and eguipment
(Nate &)

- right-of-use assets (Note 7)

Direclors' non-fee

2022
RM

38,000

(1,9%0)

192,879
37478

406,452
47 400

10,450
10

13,110
18

29,183

4743

(182,185)

The Group
2021

RM

30,000

(37,060)
(29.460)

201,900
349 467

451,848
52,560
175,269

32,935
74,216
5248

(50,287)

18,000

(1.950)

418
£3,786

75,770
7,800

11,887

15,000

(14,9€0)

92,851
69,011

50,924

9,360
175,269

6,631

{76)
9,444
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27, (LOSS)PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT'D)

The Group The
2022 2021 2022 20
RM RM R 320
StaM costs:
- salaries, allowances and
othar baralils 3137622 3,642,698 1,145,142 1,264 423
«~ defined contribuson
penefits 336,283 349,714 118,682 140,752
Income from shor-term
investmants (84,382) (120,584) - -
Interast income on financis|
assets not at fair value
through profit or loss {6E.848) (85,463)
28, TAX EXPENSE/(INCOME)
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Current tax:
- for the financial year - 130,851 - 139,951
- underprovision n the
presious financial year 631,436 135,886 488 227 -
631,436 275837 488,227 135,951
Deferred tax assets
(Note 8):
- orgination and reversal
of tamporary differences (65,754) (1,146,505) (744.000) -
565,682 (870.668) (255.773) 139,851
Pagu 62
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086415 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

28, TAX EXPENSE/(INCOME) (CONT'D)

A reconciliation of tax expensal{income) applicable o tha (loss)profit before taxation at the
statutory tax rate to fax expensedincome) &t the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company

is as follows:-
The Group The Company
2022 201 2022
RM RM M M

(Loss)Profit before taxation (656,471) (1,469,878) 3629399 (143,242)
Tax at the stalutory tax

rate of 243 (2021 - 24%) (167,553} (352,771) 871,056 (34.378)
Tax effects of:-
Non-taxable income (19,904) (41,894} (144,708) (432)
Non-deductible expenses 49,841 12928 21,774 21,135
Deferred lax assets notl

recognised during the

financial year 1,653,884 1,361,547 . 1.365,080
Unutilised of deferred tax

assels previously not

racognised {1,492.122) (1,458,222) (1,482,122) (683,412)
Tax-exempt income - (486,042) - (486.042)
Differential in tax rales - (42,000) - (42,000)
Undarprovision of current

tax i the previous

financial year 631,438 135,866 488227 -
Tax expense’

(Incoma) for the financal

year 565,682 (870.668) 1255,773) 139,954

(a) The corporate tax rate of the Company on the first RMB00,000 {2021 - RM600,000) of
chargesble Income is 17% (2021 - 17%). The tax rale appliicable to the balance of the
chargeable income & 24% (2021 - 24%), The taxation of other [urisdictions is caloulsted at
the rates pravaling In the respeciive prisdiction.

(o) The current taxation of the Company Is in respect of value added income pursuant 1o
Section 21C(2A) of the Promotion of Investments Act 1965 ("P1A 19867). Other than
Section 21C{2A) of PIA 1986, the Company is not subjest 1o tax as it has been granted the
MSC Malaysia status, which qualifies the Company for the Pioneer Status incentive under
the Promation of Invesiments Act 1886. The Company will enjoy full exemption from
income tax on #s statutory ncome from picneer activities for a peried of 5 years, from 27
August 2015 to 26 August 2020

Fage 63
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporsted i Malaysia)
Registration Na: 201401020333 (1096410 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

28.

TAX EXPENSE/(INCOME) (CONT'D)

{c)

(d)

Subsequently, the Company has obtained the approval from the Malayslan Investment
Development Authority (‘MIOA”) on 14 December 2020 for the extension of the pioneer
penod from 27 August 2020 to 30 June 2022,

The further extension of pianser pedod from 1 July 2021 to 26 August 2025 is subjecl to
approval by MIDA with fulfiment of the conditions stated in tha MIDAs lelier dated 14

Decamber 2020,

As at 30 June 2021, the Company does not meat the conditions stated In tha MIDA's letier
dated 14 December 2020, and henoce not eligitie for tax incentive from 1 July 2021

onwards.

fcome tax savings during the financal year ariging from:-

The Group

Utlisation of capital
allowances:
- for the curent
linancial year -
- previously not
recognsed -

201
RM

The Company
2022 2021

RM RM

20,063

Utiksation of tax
losses:
- for the cumrent
fnancial year 70,057

Utilisation of ploneer
losses:
- praviously not
recognised

2,647,543

2 847 548
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

29, CASH FLOW INFORMATION
@ The cash distursed for the purchase of property and equipment is as follows -

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Proparty and
equipment
Cost of property and
equipment purchased
(Note 8) 7,081,401 104,527 2230 10,008
Less: Acquired
through hire purchase
arangements {113,000) - - -
Less: Acquired
through term loan
arangements (5.652,500) - . -
1,315,591 104,527 2,280 10,009
Page 85
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No. 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

29, CASHFLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
) The recondliations of abilites arlsing from financing activities are as follows:-

Hires
Term Purchase Leasa
Loans Payables Liabilities Total
RM KM RM RM
The Group
2022
At 1 October 2021 860,203 2,082 350,811 1,213,958
Changes In Financing Cash
Fiows
Proceeds from drawooan 5,662,500 113,000 - 5,765,500
Repayment of principal (218,816) (2.082)  (332,527) (555,325)
Repayment of inlerests (113,110) {18} (29,123) (142.251)
5319574 110,000 (361,650) 5067924
lerderost recognisad
sl expensa
in profit or loss (Note 27) 113110 18 29,183 142,311
Reassassment of leases
{Note 20) - - 137,482 137,482
COVID-19-rofated rent
concessions (Notes 20
and 27}
- peincipal - - (1,8%0) {1,890)
- interests - - (60) (ac)
113,110 18 164,716 277,843
Al 30 September 2022 6,282 BB7 113,000 163,876 6,550,763
Pags 66
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporsted in Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

29, CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
() The reconciliations of liabilties arising from financing actvities are &% follows (Cont'd)-

Hre
Term Purchase Lease
Loans Payables Liabilities Total
RM RM RM RM
The Group
2021
At 1 Oclober 2020 872,743 25,629 271,277 1,272,649
Changes in Financing Cash
Flows
Repayment of prncipal (112,540) (25,647) {299,202) (A37,389)
Rapayment of Interests (54,028) (729) {30.287) (85,044)
(166.568) {26,376) (329.489) (522,433)
Other Changes

Inferest expense recognised in
profit or loss (Notes 20

and 27) 54,028 729 32935 87,692
Meodification of leases
(Note 20) - - 413,148 413,148
COVID-19-related rent
concessions (Notes 20
5L {34.412) (34,412)
" m - = ' ()
- inferests - . (2,648) (2.648)
54,028 729 400,023 463,780
Al 30 September 2021 860,203 2,882 350,811 1,213,996
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

29. CASHFLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(b) The reconcliations of Eabilkies arising from financing activities ara as follows (Cont'd)-

Lease
Liahilties
RM
The Company
2022
At 1 Qciober 2021 12,043
Changes in Fisancing Cash Flows
Repaymenl of principal (64,223)
Repayment of interests (11,827)
(76,050)
Other Changes
Interest expensa recognised in profit or loss (Note 27) 11,887
Reassessmaent of lease (Note 20) 137,482
COVID-19-refated rent concassions (Notes 20 and 27):
- peincipal (1.880)
- interests (60)
147,419
At 30 Saptember 2022 83,412
2021
Al 1 October 2020 83412
Changes In Financing Cash Flows
Repayment of principal (57,080)
Repayment of inlerests (5,960)
(63,050)
Other Changes
Interest axpense recognisad in profit or loes (Note 27) 6,631
COVID-19-+alated rant concassions (Notes 20 and 27):
- princpal (14,279)
« interests (671)
(8,319)
At 30 September 2021 12,043
Page 63

229



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

20, CASHFLOWINFORMATION (CONT'D)
{c) The tota cash outflows for leases as a lessee are as follows:-

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Payment of
short-term leases 4,748 5,248 . -
Intaresat psid on
lease fiabilities 29183 32,93 11,887 6,631
Payment of [ease
liabilties 332,527 296,202 64,223 57,080
366,458 337,385 76,110 83,721

(d) The cash and cash eguivalents comprise the following:-

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM KM RM
Fixed daposits with
licensad banks 4,327 865 3986,272 -
Cash and bank
balances 6,361,735 6,544 821 455 405 2832711
Short-term
Investments 26,208 5825776 - .
10,705,806 16,456,869 455408 293271
Less: Fxed
deposiis pledged
to fcansed banks
(Note 16} (4,327 ,665) (3,986,272) - -
6,377,843 12,470,597 455405 2932,

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

No provisions are recognised on the following matters as it is not prodable that a future sacrifice of
economic banefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement:-

The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Performance guarantee given to 1hird parties 5,294 959 5,204 850
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Purchass of propearty and equipment - 6,317,500

In the previous financial year, a deposit of RM332,500 has been pald as at the dale of the reporting
periad, as disclosed in Nole 12 to the financlal statements.

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) identities of Related Parties

Partles are considered {o be related to the Group # the Group or the Company has the
ability, dicectly oc indirectly, to control or jointly contral the party or exarcise significant
Infivence over the party in making fmancial and cperating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group or the Company and the parly are subject to commaon control.

In addition to the information detalled elsewhere in the financie! statemants, the Group has
wlemdwnyrd:ﬁuwﬁa:mtuduemudmiﬁuﬁﬁnhesamemof

companies.
(b) Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the fnancial statements, the Company also
carmed out the following significant transactions with the related parties during the financial

year:-
The Company
2022 2021
RM RM

Subsidiaries
Licensing fee 4,034,864 340,665
Technical assistance 644270 1,660,173
Paymant on behalf by - 4,309,003
Payment on behalf of 8798 19,827

The significant outstanding balances of the refated parties (Incuding the afowance for
impairment loss made) together with ther terms and conditions are disclosad in the
raspeciive notes 1o the financial statements,
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Ragstration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

The Group(The Company
2022 2021
RM RM

In respect of e hnancial year andad 30 September 2021

First inerim single tier dividend of RM2.15 per ordinary share . 4,300,000
3“‘0” -
3,561,000 4,300,000

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's activiies are exposed to 8 verlety of market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and equily price risk), credit risk and Bquidity risk. The Group's overall financiaf risk
management poicy focuses on the ungredictabllity of financial markels and seeks to minmise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

34.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
The Group's policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-
(a) Market Risk
(1) Foraign Currency Risk

The Group I8 exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and
balances that are denominated in cumencies other than the respective
functional currenciea of entitles within the Group. The curencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar ("USD") and Canadian
Dallar ("CAD"). Foreign currency risk is monitored closely on an ongoing
basts to ensure that the nel exposure is at an scoaptable level.

The Group's exposura to foreign curmancy risk (a currency which is other
than the functional currency of the entities within the Group) based on the
carrying amounts of the financial instruments at the end of the reporiing
petiad is summarized below:-
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
34.1  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
0] Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)
Foreign Currency Exposurg
United

States Canadian Rngoit
Dokar Dollar Mafaysa Tota!

RM RM RM RM
The Group
2022
Elnancial Assals
Trade recevables - . 406,834 406,834
Short-term
nvestments - - 26,208 26,208
Fixed deposits with
ficensed banks - . 4,327865 4,327,865
Cash and bank
balances 12325 5,856 6,333,554 6,351,736
12,328 5,856 11004461 11112642
Enapcial Linbdites
Trade payables - - 978,719 978,719
Other payables and
accruals - 7,548 534,376 54990
Torm loans - - 6,292 887 6292887
Hire purchase
payables - - 113,000 113,000
- 7.545 7918882 7,926,527
Net financial
assets| liabilities) 12,325 (1,699) 3175479 3,166,115
Lesa: Net financial
liabliliesas=als)
denominated in the
respective anfities’
functonal currencies - 1689 (3,175479) (3.473.7%0)
Currency exposurna 12,325 - . 12,325
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)

i Focaign Currancy Risk (Cont'd)

Fovaign Currency Exposure (Conltd)
Unhed
States Canadian Ringot
Dallar Dallar Nsaysis Total
RM RM RM M
The Group
2021
Emancial Assets
Trade raceivabies - - 3,408,381 3,405,261
Other recevables - - 73636 73,636
Short-term
investimants - - 5925778 5925776
Fixed daposits with
licersad banks . - 3986272 3986272
Cash and bank
balances 11,136 5882 6527803 6544802
11,138 5882 19918848 10935866
Eipanciad Liabdities
Trade payables . - 978475 a78 475
Other payables and
accruss - 7.324 §15.507 823,231
Term loans . - 860,203 860,203
Hire purchase
payablas . - 2,882 2,982
- 7,324 2655567 266280
Net financial
assetsiliabilitles} 11,136 (1.442) 17263281 17,272387%
Less; Net inancat
llabifities!{assets)
genaminated in the
respeciva entities’
functional currencies - 1442 (17,263251) (17.261,839)
Clurrency exposurs 11,136 - . 11,138

Page 73

234



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporatad in Malaysia)
Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
34.1  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
0 Foreign Currancy Risk (Coal'd)

Forelgn Curency Exposure (Cont'd)
United
Statas Canadian Ringgit
Dollar Dollar Mefaysia Total
RM M RM RM
The Company
2022
Einancial Assets
Amount owing
subsidiaries » - - 2,403,164 2,403,164
Cash and bank
balances 12,325 - 443 060 a55.405
12,325 - 2846244 2,858,569
£ ol Lisbili
Trade payables - - 11,161 11,161
Othar payables and
accruais - - 147,653 147 883
Amaunt owing to
subsdianes - 169,545 - 169,645
- 169,648 158,814 328,359
Nat financial assets/
(nabiltes) 12,325 (168,548) 2887430 2,50.210
Less: Net financial
Tiatdlities/assals)
danominated In the
entity's functionsl
CUMeNcias - 159,545 (2,887,430} (2.517.885)
Currency exposwuro 12325 - . 12325
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporatad in Malaysia)

Reglstration No: 201401020333 (1006419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a) Market Risk (Cont'd)

(i Foraign Currency Risk (Cont'd)
Fovaign Currency Expasure (Conl'd)
United
Stales Canadian Ringgit
Daltar Dofar Malaysia Total
RM RM RM RM
The Company
2021
Amount owing by
subsdiaries - T30 7.3
Cash and bank
batances 11,138 - 2,921,575 2932711
1,138 - 2,928,876 2940012
Financlal Liabilities
Other payables and
accruals . - 153,850 153,950
Amount oming to
subsidianes 164,585 9,003 173.588
- 164 588 162,853 327538
Net financial asseats/
(liabdities) 19,126 (164,585) 2765923 2612474
Less: Net financial
iabifses/assels)
denoeminated in the
entity’s functionad
currencies - 184,585 (2.765923) (2,601,338}
Currency exposure 11,138 - - 11,136
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1046419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
0] Foreign Currency Risk (Comt'd)
Foreign Currancy Risk Sansitnty Analysis

Any reasonably possibie change In the foreign currency exchange rates al
the and of the repariing period against the respective functional currencies
of the entities within the Group does not have a material impact on the
profitloss afler taxation and other comprahansive income of the Group
and of the Company and hence, no sensitivity analysis is presented,

(%) Interest rade risk

Inferest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of &
fisancia! Instrument will fluctuste because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's exposure to inforest rate risk arises mainly fram
long-term ings with varable rates. The Group's policy is to obtain
the mos! favourable interest rates avalladle and by maintsining &
palanced portfolio mix of fixed and floating rate barrowings.

The Group's fixed deposits with Scensed banks, fixed rate term loan and
hire purchase payables are carriad at amortised cost. Therefore, thay are
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in MFRS 7 since neither the
carrying amount nor the fulure cash flows will flucluate because of &
change In marke! interest rates.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk based on the carmying amounts
af the financial instruments ot the end of the reporting period is disclosed
in Note 22 to the financial siatements,
Intevast Rate Risk Seasitivity Analysis

The following table details the sensitivity anafysis 10 8 reasonably possible
change in the Interest rates at the end of the reporting period, with Al

othar variables held conatant-
The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Effects on (Loss)(Profit After Taxation
Increase of 100 basis points {(bp) (45,162) (3,153)
Decrease of 100 bp 45,162 3,153
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Inrcorparated in Makaysaa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a)  Market Risk (Cont'd)
(i) Equity Price Risk

The Group does not have any quoted investments and hence, & not
exposad (o equity price risk,

(b)  Credit Risk

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulling, arises
mwmm-:mmmm.ru&mpmammwwm
risk by the applcation of credit appeovals, credit limits and maonitoring procedures on
mmmmmﬁmmmfmmuwawmm).u
Group minmises credit fisk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterpartes,

The Company's axposure to credil fisk arises principaty from loans and advances
to subsidiaries, and corporate guarantee given to financial Instiutions for credn
faciilies granted to cerain subsidiaries. The Company monitors the resuits of
these subsidiaries regularly and repayments made by the subsiiaries.

(i) Credit Risk Concentration Profie

The Group's maor concentration of cred risk refates to the amount owing
by two customers which consttuted the eatire of its lrade recelvabies at
the end of the repocting periad

(i) Maximum Exposure to Creda Risk

At the end of the reporting period, the maximum axposure 1o credt rsk is
represanted by the carrying amount of each class of financial assats
recognisad In the statements of financial position of the Group and of the
Company after deducting any allowance for impsirment losses (where
appicable).
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Maaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(i}  Assessment of impalment Losses

The Group has an infoermal eredit palicy in place and the exposure to credit
risk s moniored on an on-going basis through pericdic review of the
ageing of the trade recelvables. The Group closely monitors the trade
recaivables’ financial strength to reduce the risk of loss

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whather any of the financial
835015 al amortised cos! are credit impaied.

The gross carrying amounts of those financial assets are written off when
thera I8 no reasonable expectation of recovery (e, the deblor does not
have assels or sowrcas of income to generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the debt) despite they are still subject 1o enforcement activities.

A financlal asset is credit impaired when any of following events that have
a detrimental impact an the estimatad fubure cash flows of the financial
assat have occurrad:-

Significant financial difficut of the receivable;
A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
Restructuring of a debt In refation to the receivable’s financial
difficulty; and

. it is becoming probable that the receivable will enfer banknupicy
and other financial recrganisation,

The Group considers a recaivable to be in default when the receivablie is
untikety fo repay its debt to the Group In full or is more than 12 months

The Group appias the simplified approach 1o measuring expecied credt
Weses which uses a lifelime expected loss aliowance for ol trade
recaivables.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)

{#) Assessment of impalrment Losses (Cont'd)

inputs, Assumptions asnd Techniques used for Estimating Imparment
Losses

To measure the expecled credit osses, trade receivables and contract
assels have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets relate 1o unbilied work In progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the tade
recelvables for the same types of contracts. Therefore, the Group
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are 8
reasonable approximation af the koss rates for the conlract assels.

The Group measures the expected credit losses of certain major
customers, trade receivables that are credit mpaved and Uade
recoivables with a high risk of dafault on individual basis.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of safes over a
period of 12 manths from the measurement date and the corresponding
historical credil keses axperiencad within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and farward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the abiity of the customers 1o sattio their
debts.

There sre no signficant changes in the estimaticn lechniques and
assumptions as compered 1o the pravious financial year.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(lncorporated in Malaysia)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(i) Assessment of Imparment Losses (Cont'd)

2022
Not past due - = . .
Past due:
- less than 3 months 325,000 - - 325,000
- 30 6 months 41,834 - - 81,834
Trade receivables 406,834 - - 406,824
Contract assets - - = 2
406,834 - . 406,834
2021
Not past due 27,750 - . 27,750
Past due:
- Joss than 3 manths - - - S
-3 1o 6 months 3.37761 - - 3,377,611
Trade recetvables 3,405,361 . - 3,405,361
Contract aasats 118,216 - - 119,216
3.524 577 - - 3524577
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1098419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

(b)

Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(i}

Assessment of impairment Losses {(Cont'd)
Other Receivables

The Group applies the 3-stage general spproach to measunng expected
crodit losses for its other receivables,

Under this approach, loss alowanca s measured on aithar 12-moath

d credt losses or lifetime expected credit losses, by considering
the likelibood that the receivable would not be able to repay during the
contractual peried (probability of default, PD), the percentage of
contractual cash fiows that wil not be collected #f default happens {loes
given default, LGD) and the oulstanding amount that is exposed to default
risk (exposure at default, EAD).

In deriving the PD and LGD, the Group considers the receivable’s past
pemmmandibﬁnamideomnbnuaunmmdaw.mpo
is adjusied to reflect curent and forward-looking imformaticn o0
macroeconomic factors affecting the abiity of the receivable to satie fis
debts.

ANowance for Impsirment Losses
Gross Lifetime Loss Canrying
Amount Allowance Amount
KM RM RM
The Group
2022
Low credit risk - - -
Credit impairad - - 3
201
Low credil risk 73,636 . 73,636
Credit mpaired 401,812 (401,812) -
475,448 (401,812) 73636

The mavements in the loss allowancas are disclosed in Note 12 1o the
financal stalaments,
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Maiaysia)

Registration No: 201401020333 (1086418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
(b)  Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(W)

Assessment of Imgaimment Losses {Cont'd)

The Company applies the 3-<tage general approach o measwring expactad
credit losses for all inter-company balances. The Company considers loans
and advences 10 subsidianes have low credit risks, The Company assumes
that there Is a signficant increase i credit risk whan the subsidiary’s financial

The Company measures the expected credit losses on individual basls,
which is aligned with fts credit risk management practices on the
inter-company balances,

For loans and advances that are repayable on demand, impairment loss &
assessed based on tho assumplion that repayment of the outslanding
balances is demanded at the reporting date. If the holding company does
not have sufficient highly liquid resourcas when the loans and advances
are demanded, the Company will consider the expected manner of
recovery to measurc the impairment loss; the recovery manner could be
efther through ‘repayable over time' or a fire sale of less Iiquid assets by
the subsidiary.

For loans and advances thal are nol repayable on demand, imparment
loss is measured using techniques that are simiar for estimating the
Impeirment losses of other receivables as disclosed above.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{incorporaied in Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (10896419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POUICIES (CONT'D)
Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(b)

(<)

(%)

Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont'd)
Amount Owing By Subsidiaries (Non-trade Bafance) (Cont'd)

Alowance for impaiment Losses
Gross Lifeime Loss  Carrying
Amount Allowance Amount
RM RM RM
The Company
2022
Credit impaired 7,249,463 (7.249,463)
2021
Cradt impairad 6,680,330 (6,590,330) -

The movements in the loss afowances are disclosed in Note 14 to the
financial statemants

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riek arses malnly from general funding and business activities. The Group
practises prudent risk management by maintaining sufficent cash batances and
the availabilily of funding through cartain commitied credil facilities.
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorparated in Malaysia)
Regisiration No: 201401020333 (1056419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
341 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)

(€)

Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
Maturity Analysis

The folowing table sets out the maturity peofile of the financial kablities at the end
of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash fiows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on the
rates at the end of the reporting period).-

Effactive Contractual Qvar
Inerest  Camying Undiscounted  Wilhin 1-5 5
Rate Amount Cash Flows 1 Year Years Yoars
% RM AM RM "M RM
The Group
2022
Non-derivatte
Financial
Liabilities
Trade payables - 978,719 978718 978,719 . -
Other payaties
and accrusls - 541,821 54919 541921 - -
Loase Uablies 7.20-7.85 153876 162,400 148,400 13,000 -
Torm loans 3.00-7.20 6292887 8686335 605532 2187052 5883751
Hire purchase
6.48 113,000 132606 26478 106,128 -
8080403 10501981 2302050 2308180 5,893,751
2021
Nen-gadaive
Elnancal
Liabites
Trade payables - 976475  9r64is 976475 - -
Other payables
and accruals . 823231 82321 103000 120,141 .
Leasa liabilties 7.95 350811 370000 208,600 71,400 .
Term loans 300-670 360203 886373 203,168 73651 46,684
Hire purchase
payabies 526 2,982 3000 3,000 -
3013702 3150079 2,184333  S28062 46,684
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
{Incorpocated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096410 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(CONT'D)
341  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTD)
{c) Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

Matunty Analysis (Conf'd)

Effactive Contractual Qvar
Intorest Carrying Undiscourded  Within 1-5 5
Rate Amounl CashFlows 1Year Years  Years

Trade payables - 11,161 1118 11161 . -
and acx:m;h - 147 553 147 653 147,653 -

subsicarias - 169,545 169,545 169,545 » -
Lease latines 785 83412 91,000 78000 13.000 -

& subsidiary - - 11,567,846 11,587 646 - .

411771 12,007,205 11894205 13000 -

and aconas . 153,850 153,650 153,980 - -

subgifiarios - 173,688 173,588 173,584 . -
Lease llabiitas 795 12,043 13,000 13,000 - -

a subsidery - - 6,155,162 8,155,162 - .

330561 6495700 6486700 - -
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated In Malayséa)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

2

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group defines capiial as the total equity and debt of the Group. The objective of the
Group's capital management is to mainlan an optimal capital structure 2nd ensuring
avallability of funds in arder to suppon its businesses and related sharehoiders value. To
achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments lo the capiial structure in view of
changes In economic condiions, such ss adusting the amount of dividend payment,
returning of capital to shareholders or [ssuing new shares.

The Group manages its capital based on debi-to-equily ratio that complies with debi
covenants and regulatory, if any. The debl-to-equity ratio s calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. The debl-to-aquity ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:-

The Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Term kans {Note 22) £.292 887 860,203
Hire purchase payables (Note 23) 113,000 2582
G406 887 863,185
Less: Cash and cash eguivalants (Note 29(d)) (6,377,943) (12,470.587)
Nat debt 27 944 N/A
Total equity 5,075,030 10,048 611
Dedt-to-aquity ratio oo N/A

There was no change in the Group's approach to capital management during the financial
yeur
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2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malayséa)
Ragistration No: 201401020333 (1096410 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

343 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
M RM a8 RM
Financial Assets
Eair Value Throuah
Profit or Losy
Shortdorm investiments
(Note 18) 26,208 5926776 -
Amerdised Cost
Trade receivables
(Note 11) 406,834 3,405,261 -
Other recelvables
(Nots 12) 73,636 - -
Ameunt awing by
subsidaries (Nole 14) - 2403163 7301
Fixed deposits with
licensed banks
(Note 16) 4,327 865 33986272 - -
Cash and bank
balances 6,351,735 6,544 421 455,405 29327111
11,086 424 14,010,090 2.858 568 2,940,012
Financial LiabRity
Trade payables
(Note 24) 878,719 976 475 11161 -
Other payables and
accruals (Note 19) 541921 8237 147,853 153,850
Amount owing 1o
subsidiaries (Note 14) - - 180,545 173,548
Team loans (Note 22) 6,292 887 860,203 - .
Hire purchase payables
(Nota 23) 113,000 2982 - =
7,926,527 2562881 328,359 327,538
Page &7

248



APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096419 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

344 GAINS OR LOSSES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM M RM RM

Financial Assets

Profit or Loss

Net gains recognised
in profit or loss 84,392 120,584

Amortised Cost
Neat gains{losses)
recognised in profit
or loss 248,833 135,755 (3,608) (9,368)

Financial Liability

Amedtised Cost
Net losses recognised
In profit of loss (123.618) (161,197) - a
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD,
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 20 SEPTEMBER 2022

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
35 FAIRVALUE INFORMATION

The fair values of the financlal assets and financial Tabiities of the Group and of the Company which are maturing within the next 12 months
apgroximated their carying amounts due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments of repayable on demand terms.

The fellowing teble sets out the far value profile of financial instruments that are carrled &t fair value and those not carried & fair value at the end

of e reporting period:-

Fak Vale of Fisancial Instruments Far Value of Financial Instruments Total

Carried At Far Value Not Carried Al Fair Valua Fair Carryirg
Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3 Level 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3 Value Amount
R RM RM /M RM RM AM RM

The Group
2022
Financial Assel
Short-term westments:
- monay market funds 26,208 - - - - . 26,208 26,208
Term loans:
« fixed rate . - - - 318,856 . 318,656 350,565
- fioating rate - - - - 5842322 - 5942322 5942322
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONT'D)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Regsiration No: 201401020333 (1008418 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
345 FAIR VALUE INFORMATION {CONT'D)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair Value of Financial Instruments Total
Carrled At Fak Value Not Carried At Fair Vakue Fak Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Value Amount
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
The Group
2021
Financial Assed
Short-term investrments:
- money market fund 5025176 . . . - . 5825776 5925776
ili
Term loans:
« fixed rate . - - . 404,507 . 404 507 445,323
& ﬁuw rafe . - - - ‘14_“0 - 414.880 ‘1‘,8&
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN, BHD.
(incorparated n Malaysia)
Regstration No: 201401020333 (1086419 . X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

34, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
345 FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONT'D)
{a) Faér Value of Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

] The far value of mohey markel funcs 5 delermined by reference lo
statements prosaded by the respedive financia nstitutions, with which the
[rwestmecns wers enterad ko at he reporing date,

(1] There ware no lransfers bebasen leved 1 and level 2 during s financial year,
&) Fair Value of Financial instruments Not Carried a1 Fair Vaue

Tha ‘ak values, which are for ducksure purpoees, hauvs been calamined using the
flowing bass:-

0] The far vaue of e Group's term Soans that cary floating inleces! rates
approximaed #s caTying amounts as thay s repricad 1o markat interest
rates on of Near the reportng dale.

(i) The far values of Group's term loan that camy feed nlerest rale are
delermined by discounting the relevant future contrachusl cash Mows using
currant macket réarast rates for similar nstruments at the and of the reporting
paricd, The miarest rates used to discount Hie estimaled cash flows are as
folows -

The Group
2021
% %

Torm loan (fixed rate} 7.20 6,70
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AZTI FOR THE FYE 30 SEPTEMBER
2021 and FYE 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 (CONTD)

AZTI TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.
) {incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 201401020333 (1096415 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

35, SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

On 4 Qcteber 2021, AZT| Engneerig (M) Sdn, Bhd., & wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
antored nto m Sale and Purchese Agmement for the purchese of a unit of three storey
semi-detached ind.striat fastory bulding hekd undes indnidus tile H.S.(D) 266842, PT 5934, Pekan
Puchong Pardana, Desrah Pelaling, Selangor for a lotal purchase congidoralion of RM8,650.000,

Inu:aptmbusﬁmno'awear.admsthmeommmidummaloonmwng
pudod.uadiadooothobﬂbhoﬂnmummm.TMpummwm
curing the Francial yesr,

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The fafowing figures hava baen neclassified o conform wah the presertation of the cureet fnancial

year-
The Group
As
Pravousty As
Reporied Raslsled
M KM
Saatements of Financial Position (Extract):-
Currgrt Fabiilies
Lease labiities 283,329 280,347
Term loaes 197,592 -
Snoet-téem borrowings - 160,372
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APPENDIX VI = FURTHER INFORMATION

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors of the Company have seen and approved this Circular and they individually and
collectively accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm that,
after making all reasonable enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no
false or misleading statements or other facts, the omission of which would make any statement
in this Circular false or misleading.

CONSENT AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

21

2.2

SCA

SCA, the Approved Adviser for the Proposed Acquisition, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its name and all references
thereto in the form and context in which it appears in this Circular.

SCA confirms that as at the LPD, there is no conflict of interest situation that exists or is
likely to exist as the Approved Adviser for the Proposed Acquisition.

Strategic
Strategic, the Independent Adviser for the Proposed Acquisition, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its name and all references

thereon in the form and context in which they appear in this Circular and IAL.

Strategic confirms that there is no conflict of interest that exists or is likely to exist in relation
to its role as the Independent Adviser for the Proposed Acquisition.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

3.1

3.2

4.1

Material Commitments

There are no material commitments incurred or known to be incurred by our Group as at
the LPD, which upon becoming due or enforceable, may have a material impact on the
financial position or business of our Group.

Contingent Liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities incurred or known to be incurred by our Group as at the

LPD, which upon becoming due or enforceable, may have a material impact on the
financial position or business of our Group.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS, AND LITIGATION

Material Contracts
Save as disclosed below, the Group has not entered into any material contracts (not being

a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) within the 2 years immediately
preceding the date of this Circular.
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APPENDIX VI — FURTHER INFORMATION (contd)

4.2  Material Litigation

As at the LPD, the Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims and/or arbitration,
either as plaintiff or defendant, and the board of directors of the Company is not aware
and does not have any knowledge of any proceedings, pending or threatened against the
Group, or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings, which might materially or
adversely affect the financial position of the business of the Company.

HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES

The monthly highest and lowest closing market price of RedPlanet Shares traded on the LEAP
Market of Bursa Securities for the past 12 months preceding the date of the Circular are set out

as below:-
Highest Lowest
RM RM
2022
September 0.28 0.28
October 0.28 0.28
November 0.28 0.28
December 0.28 0.28
2023
January 0.28 0.28
February 0.28 0.28
March 0.25 0.24
April 0.21 0.21
May 0.21 0.21
June 0.21 0.21
July 0.21 0.21
August 0.23 0.21
Last transacted market price as at the LTD 0.20
Last transacted market price as at the LPD 0.21

(Source: Bloomberg)

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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APPENDIX VI — FURTHER INFORMATION (contd)

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of
RedPlanet during normal business hours from Mondays to Fridays (except for public holidays) at
Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 8, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan
Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, from the date of this Circular up to and
including the date of the EGM:

(i)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(V)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

Constitution of RedPlanet and AZTI;

audited consolidated financial statements of RedPlanet for FYE 30 June 2021 and FYE
30 June 2022;

audited financial statements of RedPlanet for FYE 30 June 2023;

audited financial statements of AZTI for FYE 30 September 2019 to FYE 30 September
2022;

material contract referred to in Section 6.1, Appendix Il of this Circular;
the SSA;
the SHA; and

letters of consent referred to in Section 2, Appendix VI of this Circular.

[the remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank]

256



O REDPLANET

REDPLANET BERHAD
Registration No. 201901014292 (1323620-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia under the Companies Act 2016)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of RedPlanet Berhad
(“RedPlanet” or “Company”) will be held fully virtually through live streaming via an application known
as Zoom from No. 1-8, Level 8, The Boulevard, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia on Friday, 17 November 2023 at 11.00 a.m. or immediately
upon the conclusion of the Fourth Annual General Meeting (“4" AGM”) of the Company scheduled to
be held on the same day at 10.30 a.m, whichever is later or at any adjournment thereof for the purpose
of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolution with or without modifications:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY REDPLANET OF 51% EQUITY INTEREST IN AZTI TECHNOLOGY
SDN. BHD. (“AZTI”) FOR A PURCHASE CONSIDERATION OF RM7.65 MILLION TO BE SATISFIED
VIA- A COMBINATION OF CASH CONSIDERATION OF RM5.36 MILLION AND SHARE
CONSIDERATION OF RM2.29 MILLION VIA ISSUANCE OF 10,928,571 NEW REDPLANET
SHARES AT AN ISSUE PRICE OF RM0.21 PER SHARE (“PROPOSED ACQUISITION”)

“THAT subject to all approvals being obtained from the relevant regulatory or authorities, including but
not limited to the approval of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the listing of and quotation of the
10,928,571 new RedPlanet Shares, the Company is hereby authorised to acquire 1,020,000 ordinary
shares in AZTI (“Sale Shares”), equivalent to 51% of the issued capital of AZTI, from the Vendors for
a total purchase consideration of RM7.65 million (“Purchase Consideration”) to be satisfied via a
combination of cash consideration of RM5.36 million (“Cash Consideration”) and share consideration
of RM2.29 million via issuance of 10,928,571 new ordinary shares in RedPlanet (“RedPlanet Shares”)
at an issue price of RM0.21 per share (“Issue Price”) (“Consideration Shares”).

THAT approval be and is hereby given for the directors of the Company to issue and allot 10,928,571
new RedPlanet Shares as determined based on the principals and terms of the Share Purchase
Agreement dated 7 September 2023 (“SPA”) as set out in Section 2.1 of the circular to the shareholders
of RedPlanet.

THAT in connection with Section 85(1) of the Companies Act 2016 read together with Clause 16 of the
Company's Constitution, approval be and is hereby given to waive the statutory pre-emptive rights of
the existing shareholders of the Company to be first offered the new Consideration Shares to be allotted
and issued by the Company pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition which rank equally to the existing
issued shares of the Company AND THAT the Board be exempted from the obligation to first offer such
new Consideration Shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in respect of the issuance and
allotment of the new Consideration Shares pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition.

THAT the Consideration Shares shall be issued free from all encumbrances, and with all rights and
benefits attached thereto, ranking equally in all respects with the existing issued and fully paid-up
ordinary shares in RedPlanet, including without limitation all rights, dividends and/or other distributions
which may be declared, made or paid in respect thereof, where the date on which the shareholders of
the Company must be registered in order to participate in the relevant distribution, is on or subsequent
to the date of completion of the SPA in accordance with its terms.

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised and empowered to carry out, do all such acts, deeds
and things and take all such steps it may consider necessary, and to execute, sign, deliver and cause
to be delivered on behalf of the Company all such agreements (including, without limitation, the affixing
of the Company’s common seal, where necessary), addendums, amendments, supplemental
agreement and/or any other documents as the Board may consider necessary or required to give effect
to the Proposed Acquisition.”



By Order of the Board
REDPLANET BERHAD

REBECCA KONG SAY TSUI (MAICSA 7039304)

(SSM PC No.: 202008001003)

LEELA A/P SURESH KEE SEE LENG (MAICSA 7069589)
(SSM PC No.: 201908001962)

Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
Dated this 1st day of November 2023

Notes:

1.

The Extraordinary General Meeting (‘EGM”) of the Company will be conducted on a fully virtual
basis by way of live streaming via an application known as Zoom (“Zoom”). Please refer to the
Notifications on Notice of the EGM of the Company for the procedures to register and participate in
the virtual meeting.

The Main Venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Companies Act
2016 which requires the Chairperson of the meeting to be present at the main venue of the meeting.
Members and/or proxy(ies) and/or corporate representative(s) and/or attorneys WILL NOT be
physically present at the Main Venue on the day of the EGM.

A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint
proxy(ies) or in the case of a corporation, to appoint representative(s) to attend and vote in his
place. A proxy may but need not be a Member of the Company.

A Member shall appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the meeting.

Where a Member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each Securities
Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said Securities
Account.

Where a Member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares
in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”),
there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised hominee may appoint in
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

Where a Member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he
specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy appointed shall
exercise all or any of his rights to attend, participate, speak and vote at a meeting of the Company.

The Proxy Form must be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the
appointor is a corporation either under common seal or under the hand of an attorney or an officer
duly authorised.

An instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s Office situated at Unit
32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground
Floor, Vertical Podium, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan OR by electronic means via email to



is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the
EGM or any adjournment thereof at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote.

9. For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting,
the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. to make available to the
Company a Record of Depositors as at 10 November 2023 and only a depositor whose name
appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend the meeting or appoint proxies to
attend and vote in his stead.

10. Members/proxies/corporate representatives who wish to attend the EGM in person, besides
submitting the proxy form, you are advised to pre-register by completing a Pre-Reqistration Form
and submit to https://tinyurl.com/RedPlanetindividual (individual member) or
https://tinyurl.com/RedPlanetCorporate (corporate member).




PROXY FORM

CDS Account No.

®REDPLANET (lominces Accoun o)

REDPLANET BERHAD
Company No. 201901014292 (1323620-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(FULL NAME AS PER NRIC/CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION IN BLOCK LETTERS)

NRIC NO./Passport NO./COMPANY NO. .. ..ttt e e et e e e eens

(FULL ADDRESS)

being a member of REDPLANET BERHAD hereby appoint ..........cccooiiiiiiiiii,
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

................................................. NRIC NO./Passport NO. ..o e

O e e
(FULL ADDRESS)
AN/ OF e NRIC No./Passport NO. ........cccoeiiiiiiiniinns
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)
OF e e
(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing *him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy(ies) to vote for *me/us and on my/our behalf at the Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company will be conducted fully virtually through live streaming via an application known as Zoom from No. 1-
8, Level 8, The Boulevard, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia on Friday, 17
November 2023 at 11.00 a.m., or immediately upon the conclusion of the Fourth Annual General Meeting (“4" AGM”) of the Company
scheduled to be held on the same day at 10.30 a.m., whichever is later and at any adjournment thereof.

My/Our proxy(ies) is/are to vote as indicated hereunder:

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

Ordinary Resolution — Proposed Acquisition

indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your votes to be cast. In the absence of specific directions,
your proxy will vote or abstain from voting as *he/she thinks fit.

Signed this .............. dayof ...oooviiiiii , 2023.

For appointment of two (2) proxies, percentage of shareholdings to be
represented by the proxies:

Signature/Common Seal of Member No of shares Percentage

Proxy 1 %

Proxy 2 %

Total 100%



Notes:

1.

10.

The Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the Company will be conducted on a fully virtual
basis by way of live streaming via an application known as Zoom (“Zoom”). Please refer to the
Notifications on Notice of the EGM of the Company for the procedures to register and participate in
the virtual meeting.

The Main Venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Companies Act
2016 which requires the Chairperson of the meeting to be present at the main venue of the meeting.
Members and/or proxy(ies) and/or corporate representative(s) and/or attorneys WILL NOT be
physically present at the Main Venue on the day of the EGM.

A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy(ies)
or in the case of a corporation, to appoint representative(s) to attend and vote in his place. A proxy
may but need not be a Member of the Company.

A Member shall appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the meeting.

Where a Member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each Securities
Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said Securities
Account.

Where a Member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares
in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”),
there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

Where a Member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he
specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy appointed shall
exercise all or any of his rights to attend, participate, speak and vote at a meeting of the Company.

The Proxy Form must be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the
appointor is a corporation either under common seal or under the hand of an attorney or an officer
duly authorised.

An instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s Office situated at Unit
32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground
Floor, Vertical Podium, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan OR by electronic means via email to
is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the
EGM or any adjournment thereof at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote.

For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting,
the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn. Bhd. to make available to the
Company a Record of Depositors as at 10 November 2023 and only a depositor whose name
appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend the meeting or appoint proxies to
attend and vote in his stead.

Members/proxies/corporate representatives who wish to attend the EGM in person, besides
submitting the proxy form, you are advised to pre-register by completing a Pre-Registration Form
and submit to https://tinyurl.com/RedPlanetindividual (individual member) or
https://tinyurl.com/RedPlanetCorporate (corporate member).
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